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PROCEEDI NGS

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Good afternoon. We're going
to go ahead and get started. We've got the nenmbers
of the Charter Authorizing Panel here with us, and
thank you so much for those of you who were able to
cone and join us and be in attendance today. W
definitely appreciate your tine and appreciate you
under st andi ng the short notice in terns of the
timeline that we're under. M nane is Megan
Wtonski; I'mthe vice chair of the Charter
Aut hori zing Panel and | amgoing to be serving as
chair today for Dr. Tom Kinbrell who could not be
with us in attendance today. The Charter Authorizing
Panel -- | just want to make sure that we are clear
on why we are neeting today so that we are all on the
same page. W are neeting today to consider the
application requests of two open-enrol |l ment charter
applicants and this is for the charter applicants to
actual ly resubmt their application for approval
And there were two applications that woul d be
considered for this, which would be Capitol City
Li ght house Charter School in North Little Rock
Arkansas, and also for Redfield Tri-County Charter
School in Redfield, Arkansas.

So just to clarify before we nove forward,
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Arkansas |aw and the State Board of Education rules
state that an authorizer may allow an applicant for
an open-enrol | ment public charter school to resubmt
their application if the original application was
found to be deficient in some way. So before we
begin with the agenda items | want to make sure that
we all understand why we are here today and explain
to those that are present that the decision before
the Panel today is to deci de whether or not to allow
those applications to be reconsidered. And if we
vote to allow resubmssion we will need to schedule a
future hearing date for the charter applicant and
those applications would be heard at that tine. So
before we go further | just want to ask the Charter
Panel if you guys have any questions before we nove
forward?

(Brief noment of silence)

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI:  So with the consent of the
Panel, if everyone is okay and doesn't have any
questions, we are going to allow each party to speak
for five mnutes on the limted question of whether
the Panel should allow the applicant to submt --
resubmt their charter application. And, again, |
want to make sure that we're very clear that the --
we want to enphasize with the speakers that are here
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with us today, this is not a full hearing. W are
not here to conduct full hearings for either
potential or proposed charter applications. This is
simply to determ ne whether we will allow a
resubm ssion of the application to enact a ful
hearing. And | just want to clarify that, instead,
as a panel we want to hear why we should or should
not hear or allow a resubm ssion of your application
in a hearing process. And we want to nake sure also
that we hear fromthe party who initially requested
the application first and then we can follow that
w th anyone who may have any opposition to the
resubm ssion being allowed. So after we've had
presentation by both parties then | wll open the
floor, Panel Menmbers, to you so that if you have any
questions or you need further clarification we can do
that at that time. So, Panel Members, is everyone
okay with that in terms of moving forward with this
process?

(Al Panel Menbers answered affirmatively)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI = So we will be setting a
timer for you to be allowed to have tinme to he -- to
speak on the floor and | just want to clarify that's
five mnutes for each group. So if you are the
applicant who is asking for the resubm ssion of why
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we shoul d hear the application again or have a ful
hearing, you woul d have five mnutes and,
col l ectively, those in opposition woul d al so have
five mnutes
A-1: CONSI DERATI ON OF REQUEST TO RESUBM T AN OPEN- ENROLLMENT
PUBLI C CHARTER SCHOCOL APPLI CATION: CAPITOL CITY LI GHTHOUSE
CHARTER SCHOOL, NORTH LI TTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

00 N O Ok~ WDN B

N NN R R R R R R R PR,
OB WNEF O OOoWLmNOU M WRNEREO O

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI :  So before we begin | woul d
ask that we bring Ms. Mary Perry, if you would --
we've got our agenda itens that are included and
believe first up on our agenda itemis ltemA-1,
which is the Consideration of Request to Resubmt an
Qpen-Enrol I ment Public School Charter Application
that is for Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School
in North Little Rock, Arkansas. And so if you could
introduce this itemto us and share some information,
we' d appreciate it.

MS. PERRY: Thank you. On Novenber 13th and
14th, 2013, the Charter Authorizing Panel conducted
hearings for open-enrol | ment charter applicants
wanting to open schools in 2014-2015.

Representatives of Capitol City Lighthouse Charter
School appeared before the panel on November 13th and
requested that Lighthouse Academ es of Centra
Arkansas, |ncorporated, the sponsoring entity, be
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allowed to open a charter in North Little Rock to
serve students in grade K-12 with a maxi num
enrol | ment of 750. Representatives of the North
Little Rock School District and the Little Rock
School District spoke in opposition to the charter.
By a five-to-one vote the Panel denied the
application for Capitol Gty Lighthouse Charter
School. And pursuant, as Dr. Wtonski said, to
Section 6.06.2 of the Arkansas Department of
Education rul es governing public charter schools, the
applicant is here to request the Panel consider

al | owi ng the resubm ssion of the application. You do
have fol ks who woul d need to be sworn in for both --
there are representatives here fromNorth Little
Rock, as well as the applicant. And you have two
pieces of information in front of you. One of them
i ndi cates Lighthouse -- Lighthouse has that and |'m
sure they'Il tell you what those are. There is

anot her packet with paper that's stapled and North
Little Rock asks that you have that information.
Thank you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you, Ms. Perry. Any
questions for Ms. Perry before we nove forward?
Ckay. |'d like for anyone that is associated with
the Capitol Gty Lighthouse Charter School who plans
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to speak for the application to be resubnmtted for a
hearing to please stand, and anyone who would like to
oppose the Capitol Gty Lighthouse Charter School in
North Little Rock, Arkansas, who plans to testify, if
you woul d please stand. |If you would, please raise
your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth, the
whol e truth and nothing but the truth?
(ALL W TNESSES ANSVERED AFFI RVATI VELY)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. You nmay be
seated. \W're going to begin with the open-
enrol | ment applicant for the charter application that
I's requesting resubm ssion, and that would be from
Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School .

MR. RONAN: Good afternoon

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you. If you woul d
just state your name and | just want to remnd you
that you and anyone that is here to testify on behal f
of have five mnutes and | will begin that process
now.

MR. RONAN: My name is Mchael Ronan; |'mthe
founder and CEO of Lighthouse Academ es. | began ny
career in education as a mddle school teacher. |
taught math, English and history. Eventually, |
became a school superintendent and | was a schoo
superintendent for 16 years in the ninth | owest
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spendi ng school district in Mssachusetts. | founded
Li ght house Academies in 2003. W cane here to
Arkansas in 2009, opened our first charter school in
Jacksonvi |l e; expanded that school at the request of
the U S. Air Force, to the Air Force Base, and opened
a school in Pine Bluff. W submtted an application
with the applicant to open a school in North Little
Rock. You heard the application and it was denied,
and the reasons for denial inthe letter fromthe
Arkansas Department of Education were two things: one
was the curriculum questions about the curricul um
the education program and the other was about the
test results. | want to ask for reconsideration so
that these matters may be considered more fully and
that we can respond nore fully in a new hearing to
those questi ons.

Today, I'mgoing to highly just three things,
given the tine allotted. | think the first thing,
which is technical and wasn't nmentioned in the denial
letter, is the question about whether or not the
North Little Rock School District had proper notice
for the application. And as you can see from reading
our docunments, we have spelled out all of the points
at which the North Little Rock School District had
proper notice. In addition, the Departnent of
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Education found that the applicant net that standard.
In looking at the mnutes fromthe North Little Rock
School Board meeting, in which the application was
di scussed, the North Little Rock School District
denied the application based on perception of their
failure to have the application to review. That's
simply not supported by the record. But it's
I mportant to know that the North Little Rock Schoo
District did not deny the application based on its
nerits. And in the absence of a denial based on
nerits we can only conclude that there were no
obj ections by the school board to the application
based on the nerits of the application.

In terms of the assessment results, the
Power Poi nt details conparisons of the results of the
Li ght house school s in Arkansas conpared to North
Little Rock, Little Rock, and Pul aski County. And
you can see on al nost every neasure, |ooking at
students who have only been in these schools for |ess
than five years, that these students do in fact out-
performin the aggregate the school districts from
whi ch we woul d draw students to Capitol Gty. And
understand at the hearing that the North Little Rock
data was not available for the Panel to consider in
the manner in which we would present it to you if
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given the opportunity to have a re-hearing.

The last point | want to make is around the
education program So |'ve been in education a |ong
time. | taught mathematics. | understand that there
are concerns about Saxon math. W hear that from
time to time around the country. But in fact, Saxon
math is a state-approved program It is approved to
use in Arkansas schools. W have used it effectively
in Pine Bluff where we have one of the few achieving
schools in mathematics in the State of Arkansas.
There are places where it doesn't work. [In another
opportunity to present we would in fact detail how we
have in fact brought new mathematic curriculumto our
schools to in fact do those things that allow
students to be prepared to take the new assessnents
that are aligned with the Common Core.

So | know there were a lot of other things
di scussed at that hearing based upon what |'ve heard
fromour teamand |I'd be happy to respond to any and
all those issues that are raised. But in the context
of should you grant us the opportunity to present
again, | would focus on three things: there was no
deni al of our application on the basis of nerit by
the North Little Rock School District; the test
results show that our schools are in fact,
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particularly the students who have been in our
schools for nore than two years, are doing extrenely
well; and, third, we have a curriculumthat produces
those results and when we need to make adjustnents we
make those adjustments. Thank you very much.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. W are going to
al so hear fromany party that w shes to oppose the
resubm ssion. If you would, please come forward,
state your name. And | just want to remnd you as we
nove forward that, again, it's five mnutes
collectively -- and | don't know if there is anyone
el se in opposition that you'll be sharing this tinme
with. But otherw se, we are going to open the floor
to you. And if you would, just state your nane as
you begin. Thank you.

SUPT. RODGERS: M nane is Kelly Rodgers; |'m
Superintendent of Schools in North Little Rock and
do appreciate you giving us notice and letting us
have time to speak to each of you. Mne is very
short. | did not receive notice -- and it may have
been because of the transition of the superintendent.
The superintendent was actually out of -- had left
and was on vacation as | took over, so that. And the
fact that the board -- we had limted information at
the tine that we made the decision to oppose that and
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that's the reason you didn't see nore detail in the
board agenda. So |I'mgoing to keep mne short and
|'mgoing to turn it over to Ray Grdler, who has
information in the packet that you have today. Thank
you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you. If you woul d
when you come to the mc please state your nane.
Thank you

MR GRDLER M nane is Ray Grdler; | amthe
Coordinator of Data and Testing for the North Little
Rock School District. Today, | brought to you a
packet of information addressing the results that we
reported directly in the letter. | didn't formulate
a separate presentation. This is just addressing the
data that was presented in the letter and | tried to
organize it in a way that it's very clear. One of
the first things that you notice in the letter was
that Pine Bluff was left off the conparison when
conparing the other three Pulaski County schools to
their performance, so on the first page of your
handout. | also want you to keep in mnd they're
opening an el enentary school and here on the front
page you have a comparison of North Little Rock
El enentary and Lighthouse el enentaries at
Jacksonville and Pine Bluff. |If you look at the
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first two data tables, you see a conbined score for
North Little Rock elenmentaries, all 12 canpuses, for
both literacy and math. They had made a notion that
we did not nmeet any of our AMJOs. That is true.

That | true, but for elenentaries in K-5 every -- if
you | ook at our conposite scores for all those, al

our elementary schools hit all eight of those targets
set by the district in K-5. If you | ook down at the
bottom you'll see a conparison of Lighthouse and
North Little Rock in literacy. North Little Rock
scored 12.8% hi gher in conparing those grades for

all; 8.6%higher in TAG W did fall short in math
at 4.8% bel ow and 10.1%w th our TAG If you flip to
the second page of the packet, it addresses high
school, and specifically high school math. [|f you

| ook down at the bottom there you can see for us
it's al gebra and geonmetry. You see a comparison in
hi gh school where we're 5.3%above in all, 11.1%
above in TAG They did nmake a comment that the
mpjority of their 8th graders take algebra at the 8th
grade level, and so a lot of that -- you see a scale
and growth chart of all Pulaski County schools and
|"ve noticed the Jacksonville Lighthouse and the
three Pul aski County schools in that denmographic and
that representation there. Pine Bluff was left off
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because al gebra at the high school is not available
for them And there you can see where the Pul ask
County school s rank and where Jacksonville ranks as
far as the 8th grade scores are concerned. So these
are the 8th graders taking algebra early. If you
flip to the last page of the handout, this is a
conpil ed representation of the data they presented in
their letter but with the inclusion of Pine Bluff
schools with the Jacksonville schools together. So
you see a conbined | ook of their overall scores, if
you were to conpile them-- and they are in fact one
entity, when you conpare one el enmentary at each
canpus and our canpuses have 12. That is a need that
needs to be looked at. And in the second packet that
you see | made a comment at the |ast hearing about
the scale charts, how we conpare grade by grade in
literacy and math, how they were al nost identical. |
just wanted you to see the visual representation of
that, what | was trying to explain that day, in what
you have before you. | think one of the things when
opening a charter, to be innovative, is that there
needs to be addressed a need -- the comunity needs
to show a need for the charter to be in place, and
think that's one thing you need to keep in mnd when
consi dering this resubm ssion.
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CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you.

MS. STEWART: M nane is Beth Stewart; I'mthe
Assi stant Superintendent of North Little Rock. The
only thing that | want to nmention today: based on
what M. Rodgers has told you, based on the
information that you have in front of you, we still
stand strongly by our -- my comment during the
hearing that they are still -- they have still shown
no educational need in North Little Rock. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you. That's going to
concl ude the opportunity to hear fromthe charter
applicant that has requested resubm ssion and any
party who opposes the resubmssion. | want to nove
to the Panel to ask if they have any questions for
ei ther presenter that has presented today. M.

Her nandez, you're recognized.

MR. HERNANDEZ: Thank you. | have a question
for the North Little Rock data person.

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI : I f you woul d pl ease come
back to the mc and just state your nanme and
position, we'd appreciate it. Thank you.

MR GRDLER M nane is Ray Grdler; I'mthe
Coordinator of Testing and Data for the North Little
Rock School District.

MR. HERNANDEZ: (Ckay. | just wanted to clarify.
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On this list that we have, on the Lighthouse portion
of it, is the top section literacy and the bottom
section math? |Is that --

MR. G RDLER That is correct. That is correct.

MR. HERNANDEZ: (kay. That was ny only
question.

MR. G RDLER  Thank you

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Any ot her questions from
panel nembers? M. Coffman, you're recognized

MS. COFFMAN: 1'd like to ask a question of the
first gentleman for Lighthouse Charter School

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI : I f you could pl ease come
back up to the m crophone --

MR. RONAN: |'m M ke Ronan; |'mthe founder of
Li ght house Academi es.

MS. COFFMAN: H, Mke. M question was a
question -- you ended your conversation by saying if
you needed to readdress your curriculumyou woul d
And can you tell nme, do you have a process -- what is
the process in place for readdressing your
curricul unf

MR. RONAN: So we have a research devel opnent
strategy teamat Lighthouse Acadenm es, national, that
reviews all of our data in-depth for every student,
every school, every year, against not only the Common
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Core standards now but al so the state standards,
assessnent results. And then we | ook across our
school s, |ooking at subgroups, targeted groups, and
use that data to fornulate whether or not the program
- the programm ng resources that are being used are
being effective or whether they need to be changed.
So that not only includes textbooks and materials
like that, but it also includes responsive
intervention, pullouts, and things of that nature,
prof essi onal devel opment, which we believe is a very
strong conponent of our nodel. So |ook at the data
and then that data is discussed with the school, the
school |eader and the |eadership team and then that
teamis required to develop a culture achi evenent
plan, which is a -- you mght call it a schoo

i mprovenent plan, but it's a plan with specific
targets for academc growth not only for the whole
school but also for any subgroups. The |eadership
teamat that school is then evaluated on how wel
they do relative to that plan. So it's a process
that includes teacher evaluations and things of that
nat ure.

MS. COFFMAN: And as a foll owup question, is
that done annual | y?
MR. RONAN: Yeah. |It's done annually. In fact,
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we do interimassessnents five tines a year, so it's
chunked. So, you know, you have the mega anal ysis at
the end of the year but every six weeks we have
interimassessnents in which there's the school day
to day, which that process is followng then the
school .

MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you

MR. RONAN:  You're wel come.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI:  Any ot her questions fromthe
Panel ? Ckay. So our next opportunity would be
ei ther for discussion between the panel nembers --
any discussion or a notion?

DR WALTERS: Can | ask a question?

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Sure.

DR WALTERS: GCkay. So what will you be | ooking

- we're about to vote on either a notion to give
them an opportunity to present again or to deny that
opportunity. Is that correct?

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI:  Correct. This is to
consider the request for themto -- for the applicant
to resubmt their applications for approval. And so
what we are decided today is whether the Panel will
al low that resubm ssion to occur so that a form
hearing can be held or not.

DR. WALTERS: | have a motion.
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CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Dr. \Walters.

DR. WALTERS: | nake a motion that we deny the
request to present the application on another day.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  We have a motion to consider
- to deny the consideration of Capitol City
Li ght house Charter School in North Little Rock,
Arkansas.

MR. HERNANDEZ: |'Il second.

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI :  We have a second. Panel
Menbers, all in favor?

(UNANI MOUS CHORUS OF AYES)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  And so since this was a
denial we're going to have to go around and state the
reasons why we are denying the opportunity for the
charter to resubmt.

MR. BOARDMAN:  Are you sure about that? ' Cause
| thought that was just the first tine.

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  Ms. Clay, will you clarify
for us please?

MS. CLAY: You don't have to give your reason on
this one.

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI :  Ckay. So we had no nays and
| believe that was unanimous. Do we have any nays?

(Brief noment of silence)
CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Thank you so
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much, sir. & appreciate your tinme.
A-2:  CONSI DERATI ON OF REQUEST TO RESUBM T AN OPEN- ENROLLMENT
PUBLI C CHARTER SCHOOL APPLI CATI ON: REDFI ELD TRI - COUNTY CHARTER
SCHOOL, REDFIELD, ARKANSAS
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CHAI RVAN W TONSKI:  We're going to move on to
our second agenda item M. Perry, I'mgoing to turn
this over to you, this second -- this brings us to
our second agenda itemwhich is A-2, which is the
Consi deration of Request to Resubmt an Open-
Enrol | ment Public Charter School Application for the
Redfield Tri-County Charter School, Redfield,
Arkansas. Ms. Perry.

MS. PERRY: As | stated in the last item on
Novermber 13th and 14th the Charter Authorizing Pane
conducted hearings for open-enrollnment charter
applicants wanting to open next school year. The
representatives of the Redfield Tri-County School
District appeared before the Panel on Novenber 14th
and requested that Redfield Tri-County Charter
School, the sponsoring entity, be allowed to open a
charter in Redfield to serve students in grade 5-12
with a maxi mumenrol | ment of 375. By a unani nous
vote the Panel denied the application for Redfield
Tri-County Charter School. Pursuant to the rules of
Arkansas Department of Education rules governing
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public charter schools, Section 6.06.2, the applicant
requests that the Panel consider as a resubm ssion,
allowing themto resubmt the application.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you, Ms. Perry. Any
questions for Ms. Perry before we nove forward?
Ckay. If you are with the Redfield Tri-County
Charter School applicant or if you are opposing the
subm ssion of the application, if you would please
stand if you plan to testify. [If you would please
raise your right hand -- do you swear to tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

(ALL W TNESSES ANSVERED AFFI RVATI VELY)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Thank you.
W're going to hear from-- initially fromthe
charter applicant who has requested resubm ssion.
And if you would, please be mndful that there are
five mnutes allotted for your time to speak and that
woul d include anyone you would |ike to speak on
behal f of the resubmssion to be considered. So if
you woul d, please state your name and your five
mnutes wll begin.

MS. KIGHT: M name is Amanda Kight and I'll be
speaking today on behalf of Redfield Tri-County
Charter School. Is that too high?

(COURT REPORTER S NOTE: Ms. Kight was
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i ndi cating the m crophone).

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  Yes. |'msorry.

MS. KIGHT: That's okay. |'mvertically
chal I enged. W believe that we should be allowed to
have another hearing because during our hearing
accidental ly some of the menbers of the Panel were
actual l'y looking at someone el se's budget, based on
conments and questions that they asked to us during
our hearing. | had voiced a couple of tines during
the hearing | was confused; | didn't understand where
you were getting the questions and the hearing kept

proceeding. And it didn't hit me until | was driving
hone what had happened because | knew that wasn't my
budget; | knew I didn't have salaries |ike that. So

| had called and comunicated with Mary Perry the
next day and kind of told her what | thought had
happened but | was going to wait for the video to
come up on the website just to make sure. And so
once the video came up on the ADE website | went back
and | found in the hearing where we had kind of
gotten off-track a little bit. | believe it was the
Quest budget that had been presented right before me
that a couple of panel nembers had and | believe that
sone of the comments and questions that they made may
have adversely inpacted some other menbers' opinion
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because they were asking questions on the budget that
wasn't really mne. | had also presented a letter of
intent fromM. Ken Shollnier that was for an $85, 000
donation; that was not taken into consideration,
don't believe, because there was a |ot of concerns
over our -- how nuch noney we had al |l owed for
transportation and we only had 2%l eft of our budget.
V¢ can go back and watch the video to kind of hear
those questions. But inreality, had M. Shollmer's
$85, 000 been considered we had a very nice healthy 9%
left over, which is actually nore left over in that
revenue verses expenditures than the two applications
that were approved had in their budget.

There were al so questions about our curricul um
The reason we feel that we need another hearing on
the curriculumpart is, in July, we cane to the
wor kshop that Mary Perry presented for us and we
| earned a lot and took lots of notes, did lots of
things. And one of the things that we i mediately
tried to do was to join the APSRC so we coul d have
access to a Curriculum Speci alist, because that was
one of the services that they provide when you becone
a nenber. Vell, we did put in our application but we
were deni ed because we did not have approval yet for
a charter school. So we kind of thought, Okay, maybe
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we shouldn't have to have it well-defined at this
point. And then we |ooked at the question in the
application and the verbiage in that question on the
curriculumactually says, "What process wll be used
to define an aligned curriculun?" So | admt we were
weak the first presentation on our curriculum
definition, but that was kind of based on the
experience we had trying to get into the APSRC and in
the wording of the question on the application. W
wll gladly be able to go get the services of the
Curriculum Specialist and we will have a nuch better
defined curriculumif we are allowed to cone back
before you. Ve will submt a revised budget that
includes M. Shollmer's $85,000 donation so there

w | be less confusion over how nmuch our net revenue-
to-expenditure really is. And we just wanted to
reiterate that, you know, we are a grassroots
efforts; we are nothing but volunteers; we have spent
thousands -- over 1,000 hours preparing for this. W
real |y have worked hard. Qur application was a clean
application. | looked at all the other applicants;
the application that we had, in my opinion, is that
we were a very strong contender. W had nmet the
standard on 11 of the questions. There were very few
issues raised in our responses. W addressed al
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those and when we got our sunmary there was one
outstanding issue with the Gfted and Tal ented and we
addressed that successfully. W really believe that
we are speaking for the people in the Redfield Tri-
County area. W have al nbst 800 signatures and you
bunp that up against a |ot of these other
applications, they had 500 signatures and they're in
urban areas with lots of population. We're talking
about a rural part of the area in Arkansas where
those three counties cone together, where it's people
living on acres and acres of land. There's not a
dense popul ation. W have al nost 800 signatures.

The famlies there are crying out to have a school in
that area. The surrounding nmiddle schools in our
area -- | believe this past year they were all in the
Needs | nprovement category and we would Iike the
opportunity to provide a choice for the people that
live in our area to have a school in that comunity
that wel comes everybody in that area and hopeful |y
can provide a great education. Strong community
support -- | mean, this is "for the comunity, by the
community.” Okay? And we feel if we're given the
opportunity to represent and nore strongly address
those two areas of concern that you'll see that we
are wel | -prepared and conmmtted to finishing this
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process.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you very nuch. Anyone
who is here to speak in opposition of the
appl i cation?

(Brief noment of silence)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you.

MS. KIGHT: Thank you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Panel Menbers, questions
that you may have of the applicant?

DR WALTERS: | have a question for M. Perry.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :~ Ms. Perry, if you could
pl ease cone up to the mc. Thank you.

M5. PERRY: Yes, ma'am

DR WALTERS: Ms. Perry, the issue with the
budget, |I'mjust trying to get straightened out to
make sure |'mlooking at the correct budget. | don't
renenber every question that | asked but | remenber
that one of the questions that | asked the group was
that they had $5,000 budgeted for two buses, for two
used buses. Am| looking at the correct budget?

MS. PERRY: The applicant is confirmng that you
are looking at the correct budget.

MS. KIGHT: Yes. You and M. Hoy were | ooking
at the correct budget.

DR WALTERS: GOkay. Al right. Okay. | just
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needed to make sure | was |ooking at the right thing.
Thank you

MS. KIGHT: My | add one thing to that? But
the budget you were |ooking at --

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  I'msorry. [If you could,
pl ease cone back to the mc and state your name. |'m
sorry. Thank you.

MS. KIGHT: M name is Amanda Kight. And the
budget that you are |ooking at did not have the LO
fromM. Shollmer init. Andif you d included
that, then we have a surplus and | think we have
enough funds to totally address your concern of the
mai ntenance -- and double it, if we need to -- and
still having revenue left over at the end. And one
thing | wanted to bring up too -- being in this spot
for m is not a confortable position. It's hard to
get up and speak in front of people; it's hard to get
up and speak for a whole comunity of people. There
was a | ot of pressure. And when you got off on the
wong budget, that happened at kind of the very
begi nning of our hearing; it was 10 or 15 mnutes in,
maybe. And it really rocked me and | did not -- |
shoul d have been able to address your concern on the
mai ntenance with M. Shollmer's letter, and | did
not do that; | failed to do that. But having those
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questions at the beginning with the state director,
$90,000, .25 -- and I'msitting there kind of going,

"I'mnot sure what nunbers you're looking at." | was
really rocked, you know, and it really did -- | did
not do a very good job. | actually did a poor job

addressing your concerns over the textbooks and the
transportation. But | do believe that that is --
that if M. Shollmer's letter is considered, per the
LO anmount that he had, that we have plenty of noney
to address those concerns.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: M. Hernandez, who woul d you
like to bring to the mc?

MR. HERNANDEZ:  Same person.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI @ Sorry.

MS. KIGHT: Do | have to state nmy nane again?

MR. HERNANDEZ: | just have a question in
regards to M. Shollmer. M. Shollmer, the
$85, 000, is that going to be an annual reoccurring
deal or --

MS. KIGHT: No. That letter, the LA, the way I
understand M. Shollmer's intent for this year was a
one-tine donation. Now he did not include that he
woul d give us more money in our second year, but he
did not -- we did not go that far with himin asking
for that.
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MR. HERNANDEZ: (kay. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: M. Hoy, you're recognized
for questions.

MR. HOY: Thank you. | think my question is for
Legal. Do we have sonmeone from Legal ?

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  Ms. Clay or M. Lasiter, if
you coul d please come to the mc. Thank you.

MR HOY: Carification on donations. |Is it
al l owabl e to include donations not yet received in a
budget in this scenario?

MR. LASITER | nean, it's certainly allowable
to consider that as a panel and, you know, you want
to weigh with themis it certainly nmoney that's going
to be there. There's nothing that says that you
can't consider that as a part of -- going toward
their budget to get started. You know, it's ny
understanding that charter applicants routinely take
donations. | nmean, they are a 501(c)(3) organization
so they routinely take donations in order to get
started. So it's something that you certainly can
consi der.

MR HOY: Ckay.

MR. BOARDMAN: el |, and actually they don't --

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : M. Boar dman?

MR. BOARDMAN:  Yeah. Thank you. Actually, they
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don't have any money anyway. | mean, basically none
of the charter schools -- their budgets are based on
anticipated enrollments and anticipation anyway, SO

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Questions fromthe Panel ?
Ms. Coffman, you're recognized. Wo would you like
to bring to the mc?

MS. COFFMAN:  Her. If you recall in our
previous conversations about curriculum | think
you' ve addressed that today. And so ny question is:
what has changed in your relationship wth seeking
services from APSRC?

MS. KIGHT: Now that we know that it is a
requirement to have a better defined curricul umwe
are more than willing to spend that money right now,
nmoney that we have in the bank for our organization
and get that done without being a member of APSRC
Because we were trying to watch our -- be fiscally
responsi bl e and we thought we'd pay the $2,500 to
APSRC and get that service provided. But based on
the work and the hours and the time involved in doing
this whole process | would gladly go -- | would pay
for it, you know, just 'cause | want us to have the
best possible chance.

MS. COFFMAN:  Ckay.
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CHAI RVAN W TONSKI:  I'm sorry, just a noment.
Any additional questions that you have for her?

MS. COFFMAN: | was just wondering what your
alternative plan -- you said you would gladly pay.
But how are you going to seek those services?

MS. KIGHT: A couple of different avenues. 1've
talked to a couple of different educators and they
have given nme a couple of names -- they had a couple
of names that they would be willing to provide nme
that are Curriculum Specialists | can contact. And
the other one is M. Shollmer, who has becone
involved in this process. He has offered to work
with the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville and
get themto do our curriculumfor us. So I have
those two options on the table. One of them | know,
is an attenpt, kind of like a |etter of intent, but I
don't have that letter of intent so | can tell you
that ny back-up plan -- because ideally | would |ove
the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville to do ny
curriculum That would be great. |If that falls
through, then we would pay -- | would pay out of my
own noney to get that done

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Any ot her
questions fromthe panel nembers? Discussion between
the panel menbers? Thank you so nmuch.
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MS. KIGHT: (One thing.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : Sure.

MS. KIGHT: M. Shollmer had intended to be
here today with us so he could speak but he has
recently purchased a building in Redfield and its
been vacant for a while. It's like 9,000 square
feet. And he just -- with the weather moving in he's
had some issues with some possible freezing pipes
that he's trying to address. But he has conmtted to

- if we get a rehearing, he will be present and so
we coul d include himand he would be a speaker on our
behal f.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Any discussion
bet ween panel nmenmbers?

MR. BOARDMAN:  Yeah. This is between us. |
don't know exactly if we decide to do this, the
timng, howthis relates to when the hearing woul d
be, when it would have to be, and when a final
deci sion would have to be made and all that. Do
yrall -- do we --

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI:  Ms. Clay or Ms. Perry, if
you woul d, please cone address that question. M.
Boardman, his question is what the timeline would
look like if we did allow a resubm ssion of the
charter application to occur.
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MR. LASITER | know that you have a panel
meeting scheduled for, | guess, January but you coul d
also call your own neeting if you decided to re-hear
it. Interms of timng for the State Board, there
are two different authorizers in this process;
there's you and the State Board. So | would worry
about -- focus on your own process and what you want
to do and then, of course, that process -- whatever
finding that you make could be reviewed by the State
Board under the timelines under the |aw.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : ~ Thank you.

MR LASITER So really the timng is open.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Any ot her
di scussion among panel members or fol | owup
questions?

MR. HERNANDEZ: |'Il make a motion to deny the
request for a rehearing.

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  We have a notion to deny the
request for a resubm ssion of the charter
appl i cation.

MR. HOY:  Second.

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI : ~ Second from M. Hoy. Al
those in favor?

MR, HERNANDEZ:  Aye.

MR HOY: Aye.
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DR WALTERS: Aye.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Any opposed?

MR. BOARDMAN:  No

MS. COFFMAN:  No.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : W have two opposed. M.
Lasiter, if we have opposition do we need to state
why we have opposition?

MR. LASITER No, ma'am You just want to make
sure -- was it a three-to-two vote?

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: ~ Yes, sir. A three-to-tw
vote to deny the resubmission for the charter
application for the Tri-field [sic] County -- I'm
sorry, | apologize -- for the Tri-County Charter
School for Redfield, Arkansas. M. Lasiter, did you
have another comment? ['msorry.

MR. LASITER \Well, just whenever you're --
before we adjourn.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Yes, sir. | do want to
thank you for comng back out and | understand what
the concerns were in terns of the budget. But | do
want to note that | think we encouraged you after the
conclusion to go forth and begin | ooking and working
through the curriculum process, and | would still
encourage you to do so for that resubm ssion to occur
at a later date. So, thank you so nuch for com ng
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V¢ appreciate it.

MR BOARDMAN. Can | --

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI:  I'msorry. M. Boardman,
you' re recogni zed

MR. BOARDMAN: | would like to really encourage
that also. | don't think of all the people that have
been before us | have had a group that was any nore
sincere and any nore dedicated to make this work than
this group. And | know it would be difficult to go
back and try to do some of this again, but | think it
wll be worth it because | really think that y'al
have the students' best interest in mnd and you're
trying to do sonething right.

DR WALTERS: Can | say sonething?

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI:  Dr. Walters, you're

recogni zed.
DR, WALTERS: And | know we don't have to tell
our reasons but | just -- because | know the group

feels like there was a technicality with the budget
and | just want to make sure that you understand that
my reasons for voting to deny |ast tinme weren't
because of the budget questions that anyone raised
that was froman erroneous budget. You know, there
were several reasons and | think you're working

t owar ds addressing sone of those but, you know, |
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didn"t feel like today that what was brought to us
was a reason to bring it back up this soon. But |

agree with what M. Boardman said, as well. Thank
you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : And | woul d concur also with
the budget issue. That mght -- | would -- | am

interested to see what the curricul umm ght | ook
li ke, something that we -- tangible that we could
review and sonething we could actually | ook forward
to. Soin terms of the panel, M. Lasiter, we'll
turn it over to you

MR. LASITER Just a couple of things. | wanted
to make sure everyone knows that regardl ess of what
happened today in this neeting these applications
wll still be on the agenda of the next State Board
of Education neeting. Now that neeting was schedul ed
to take place on Monday but we've recently |earned
this afternoon it's going to be postponed one week
due to the weather. So just for the applicants that
are here today, the State Board of Education stil
has an independent right of review of each one of
these decisions and so they will be on the agenda for
the next State Board of Education meeting. And the
State Board of Education will decide at that point
whether to exercise its own right of review If it
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does that, there will be a full hearing before the
State Board. So | just wanted to make sure that
everyone was aware of that process, number one. And
then, nunber two, that everyone was aware of the fact
that we are not going to have a State Board neeting
on Mnday; it will happen the next follow ng Mnday,
which | believe is the 16th at 9:00 in this room

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  So we will -- the State
Board of Education will be meeting on Mnday, the
16th, and will begin at 8:00 [sic] and that will be
an opportunity for the State Board to -- I'msorry --
9:00 a.m That will be the next opportunity for the
State Board to review applications.

Thank you. This meeting i s adjourned.

(The meeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m)
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CHARTER AUTHORI ZI NG PANEL 1 PROCEEDINGS
2 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Good afternoon. We're going
Ll TTﬁé %’TO‘ARNN;EZM 3 to go ahead and get started. We've got the members
4 of the Charter Authorizing Panel here with us, and
Decenber 5, 2013 5 thank you so much for those of you who were able to
6 come and join us and be in attendance today. We
7 definitely appreciate your time and appreciate you
APPEARANCES 8 understanding the short notice in terms of the
9 timeline that we're under. My nameis Megan
PANEL  MEVBERS: 10 Witonski; I'm the vice chair of the Charter
Dr. Megan Wt onski Asst. Conmi ssioner-Learning Services |11 Authorizing Panel and | am going to be serving as
and Acting Chairnan . .
Ms. Deborah Cof f man Chief of Staff 12 chair today for Dr. Tom Kimbrell who could not be
M. Mke Hernandez Asst. Conmi ssioner-Fiscal /Admin. |13 with usin attendance today. The Charter Authorizing
M. Ji m Boar dnan Asst. Conmi ssi oner - Resear ch/ Tech. .
Dr. Karen Wilters Asst. Conmi ssioner-HR/ Li censure |14 Panel -- | just want to make sure that we are clear
M. John Hoy Asst. Conmi ssioner-P.S. Accountability 15 on Why we are meeting today so that we are all on the
16 same page. We are meeting today to consider the
ALSO APPEARI NG 17 application requests of two open-enrollment charter
_ 18 applicants and thisis for the charter applicantsto
Me. Mary Perry Director, Charter/Home Schools |, q actually resubmit their application for approval.
20 And there were two applications that would be
LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE PANEL: 21 considered for this, which would be Capitol City
M. Jeremy Lasiter ADE General Gounsel 22 Lighthouse Charter School in Nort.h Little Rock,
Ms. Kendra d ay ADE Attorney Specialist 23 Arkansas, and aso for Redfield Tri-County Charter
Ms. Lori Freno ADE Deputy General Counsel ; ;
Ms. Valerie Bailey ADE Attorney Speciali st 24 SChOO! n Redfle!d’ Arkansas.
25 So just to clarify before we move forward,
Page 2 Page 4
I NDE X .
page | 1 Arkansas law and the State Board of Education rules
Prelimnary Matters . . . . . . . . .. ... 3| 2 state that an authorizer may allow an applicant for .
A1 Capitol Gy Lighthouse . o . o o s | 3 anopen-enrollment public charter school to resubmit
, ‘ 4 their application if the original application was
A-2: Redfield Tri-County . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 21 L. K
. o 5 found to be deficient in some way. So before we
Court Reporter's Certificate . . . . . . . . . . . . . 44 6 beginwiththeagendaitemslWanttomakesurethat
7 we all understand why we are here today and explain
8 to those that are present that the decision before
9 the Panel today is to decide whether or not to allow
10 those applications to be reconsidered. And if we
11 vote to allow resubmission we will need to schedule a
EXHIBI TS 12 future hearing date for the charter applicant and
Al CAPITOL O TY LI GHTHOUSE 13 those applications wou_ld be heard at that time. So
Exhibit e (1) 14 before we go further | just want to ask the Charter
Letter fromMs. Perry to Dr. Phillis Anderson (11/27/13) |15 Panel if you guys have any questions before we move
re: Notification of Reasons for CAP Deci sion
16 forward?
Exhibit Two (2 : -
NLRSD Per f (()rirance Repor t 17 (Brief moment of silence)
Exhibit Three (3) 18 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: So with the consent of the
Li ght house Acadeni es Power Poi nt Presentation 19 Panel, if everyoneisokay and doesn't have any
Exgi bit Egur (81 . 20 guestions, we are going to allow each party to speak
cale Score tharts 21 for five minutes on the limited question of whether
A-2: REDFIELD TRI - COUNTY 22 the Panel should allow the appllcant to submit --
Exhibit One (1) . 23 resubmit their charter application. And, again, |
NS PO of rasens 1o "B RS’ ™ |24 want to make sure that we're very clear that the
25 we want to emphasize with the speakers that are here
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1 with ustoday, thisis not afull hearing. We are 1 allowed to open a charter in North Little Rock to
2 not here to conduct full hearings for either 2 serve studentsin grade K-12 with a maximum
3 potential or proposed charter applications. Thisis 3 enrollment of 750. Representatives of the North
4 simply to determine whether we will alow a 4 Little Rock School District and the Little Rock
5 resubmission of the application to enact afull 5 School District spoke in opposition to the charter.
6 hearing. And | just want to clarify that, instead, 6 By afive-to-one vote the Panel denied the
7 as apand we want to hear why we should or should 7 application for Capitol City Lighthouse Charter
8 not hear or allow aresubmission of your application 8 School. And pursuant, as Dr. Witonski said, to
9 in ahearing process. And we wantto makesurealso | 9 Section 6.06.2 of the Arkansas Department of
10 that we hear from the party who initially requested 10 Education rules governing public charter schools, the
11 the application first and then we can follow that 11 applicant is here to request the Panel consider
12 with anyone who may have any opposition to the 12 allowing the resubmission of the application. You do
13 resubmission being allowed. So after we've had 13 have folks who would need to be sworn in for both --
14 presentation by both parties then | will open the 14 there are representatives here from North Little
15 floor, Panel Members, to you so that if you haveany |15 Rock, aswell as the applicant. And you have two
16 guestions or you need further clarificationwecando |16 pieces of information in front of you. One of them
17 that at that time. So, Panel Members, is everyone 17 indicates Lighthouse -- Lighthouse has that and I'm
18 okay with that in terms of moving forward with this |18 surethey'll tell you what those are. Thereis
19 process? 19 another packet with paper that's stapled and North
20 (All Panel Members answered affirmatively) 20 Little Rock asks that you have that information.
21 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Sowewill besettinga |21 Thank you.
22 timer for you to be allowed to have time to be -- to 22 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you, Ms. Perry. Any
23 speak on the floor and | just want to clarify that's 23 guestions for Ms. Perry before we move forward?
24 five minutes for each group. So if you arethe 24 Okay. I'd like for anyone that is associated with
25 applicant who is asking for the resubmission of why |25 the Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School who plans
Page 6 Page 8
1 we should hear the application again or have afull 1 to speak for the application to be resubmitted for a
2 hearing, you would have five minutes and, 2 hearing to please stand, and anyone who would like to
3 collectively, those in opposition would also have 3 oppose the Capitol City Lighthouse Charter Schooal in
4 five minutes. 4 North Little Rock, Arkansas, who plansto testify, if
5 A-1: CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO RESUBMIT AN OPEN-ENROLLMENT 5 you would please stand. If you would, pleaseraise
6 PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION: coranucmos | 6 your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth, the
7 CHARTER SCHOOL, NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS | 7 whole truth and nothing but the truth?
8 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: So beforewe begin| would | 8 (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY)
9 ask that we bring Ms. Mary Perry, if you would -- 9 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. You may be
10 we've got our agendaitemsthat are included and | 10 seated. We're going to begin with the open-
11 believe first up on our agendaitem is Iltem A-1, 11 enrollment applicant for the charter application that
12 which is the Consideration of Request to Resubmit an |12 is requesting resubmission, and that would be from
13 Open-Enrollment Public School Charter Application; |13 Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School.
14 that isfor Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School, 14 MR. RONAN: Good afternoon.
15 in North Little Rock, Arkansas. And soif you could |15 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. If youwould,
16 introduce thisitem to us and share some information, |16 just state your name and | just want to remind you
17 we'd appreciate it. 17 that you and anyone that is here to testify on behalf
18 MS. PERRY: Thank you. On November 13thand |18 of have five minutes and | will begin that process
19 14th, 2013, the Charter Authorizing Panel conducted |19 now.
20 hearings for open-enrollment charter applicants 20 MR. RONAN: My nameis Michagl Ronan; I'm the
21 wanting to open schools in 2014-2015. 21 founder and CEO of Lighthouse Academies. | began my
22 Representatives of Capitol City Lighthouse Charter |22 career in education as a middle school teacher. |
23 School appeared before the panel on November 13thand |23 taught math, English and history. Eventualy, |
24 requested that Lighthouse Academies of Central 24 became a school superintendent and | was a school
25 Arkansas, Incorporated, the sponsoring entity, be 25 superintendent for 16 yearsin the ninth lowest
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1 spending school district in Massachusetts. | founded | 1 given the opportunity to have are-hearing.
2 Lighthouse Academiesin 2003. We came here to 2 Thelast point | want to make is around the
3 Arkansas in 2009, opened our first charter school in 3 education program. So I've been in education along
4 Jacksonville; expanded that school at the request of 4 time. | taught mathematics. | understand that there
5 the U.S. Air Force, to the Air Force Base, and opened | 5 are concerns about Saxon math. We hear that from
6 aschool in Pine Bluff. We submitted an application 6 time to time around the country. But in fact, Saxon
7 with the applicant to open a school in North Little 7 math is a state-approved program. It is approved to
8 Rock. You heard the application and it was denied, 8 use in Arkansas schools. We have used it effectively
9 and the reasons for denia in the letter from the 9 in Pine Bluff where we have one of the few achieving
10 Arkansas Department of Education were two things: one |10 schools in mathematics in the State of Arkansas.
11 was the curriculum, questions about the curriculum, |11 There are places where it doesn't work. In another
12 the education program; and the other was about the 12 opportunity to present we would in fact detail how we
13 test results. | want to ask for reconsideration so 13 have in fact brought new mathematic curriculum to our
14 that these matters may be considered more fully and |14 schoolsto in fact do those things that allow
15 that we can respond more fully in anew hearing to 15 students to be prepared to take the new assessments
16 those questions. 16 that are aligned with the Common Core.
17 Today, I'm going to highly just three things, 17 So | know there were alot of other things
18 given thetime allotted. | think the first thing, 18 discussed at that hearing based upon what I've heard
19 which istechnical and wasn't mentioned in the denial |19 from our team and I'd be happy to respond to any and
20 letter, is the question about whether or not the 20 all thoseissuesthat areraised. But in the context
21 North Little Rock School District had proper notice |21 of should you grant us the opportunity to present
22 for the application. And asyou can seefromreading |22 again, | would focus on three things: there was no
23 our documents, we have spelled out all of thepoints |23 denial of our application on the basis of merit by
24 at which the North Little Rock School District had 24 the North Little Rock School District; the test
25 proper notice. In addition, the Department of 25 results show that our schools arein fact,
Page 10 Page 12
1 Education found that the applicant met that standard. | 1 particularly the students who have been in our
2 In looking at the minutes from the North Little Rock 2 schools for more than two years, are doing extremely
3 School Board meeting, in which the application was 3 well; and, third, we have a curriculum that produces
4 discussed, the North Little Rock School District 4 those results and when we need to make adjustments we
5 denied the application based on perception of their 5 make those adjustments. Thank you very much.
6 failure to have the application to review. That's 6 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. We are going to
7 simply not supported by the record. But it's 7 also hear from any party that wishes to oppose the
8 important to know that the North Little Rock School 8 resubmission. If you would, please come forward,
9 District did not deny the application based on its 9 state your name. And | just want to remind you as we
10 merits. And in the absence of adenial based on 10 move forward that, again, it's five minutes
11 merits we can only conclude that there were no 11 collectively -- and | don't know if thereis anyone
12 objections by the school board to the application 12 elsein opposition that you'll be sharing thistime
13 based on the merits of the application. 13 with. But otherwise, we are going to open the floor
14 In terms of the assessment results, the 14 toyou. And if you would, just state your name as
15 PowerPoint details comparisons of the results of the |15 you begin. Thank you.
16 Lighthouse schoolsin Arkansas compared to North 16 SUPT. RODGERS: My name is Kelly Rodgers; I'm
17 Little Rock, Little Rock, and Pulaski County. And 17 Superintendent of Schoolsin North Little Rock and |
18 you can see on almost every measure, looking at 18 do appreciate you giving us notice and letting us
19 students who have only been in these schoolsfor less |19 have time to speak to each of you. Mineisvery
20 than five years, that these students do in fact out- 20 short. | did not receive notice -- and it may have
21 perform in the aggregate the school districts from 21 been because of the transition of the superintendent.
22 which we would draw studentsto Capitol City. And| |22 The superintendent was actually out of -- had left
23 understand at the hearing that the North Little Rock |23 and was on vacation as | took over, so that. And the
24 data was not available for the Panel to consider in 24 fact that the board -- we had limited information at
25 the manner in which we would present it to you if 25 the time that we made the decision to oppose that and
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1 that's the reason you didn't see more detail in the 1 because algebra at the high school is not available

2 board agenda. So I'm going to keep mine short and 2 for them. And there you can see where the Pulaski

3 I'm going to turn it over to Ray Girdler, who has 3 County schools rank and where Jacksonville ranks as

4 information in the packet that you have today. Thank | 4 far as the 8th grade scores are concerned. So these

5 you. 5 are the 8th graderstaking algebra early. If you

6 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. If youwould, | 6 flip to the last page of the handout, thisisa

7 when you come to the mic please state your name. 7 compiled representation of the data they presented in

8 Thank you. 8 their letter but with the inclusion of Pine Bluff

9 MR. GIRDLER: My nameis Ray Girdler; | anthe | 9 schools with the Jacksonville schools together. So
10 Coordinator of Data and Testing for the North Little |10 you see a combined look of their overall scores, if
11 Rock School District. Today, | brought to you a 11 you were to compile them -- and they are in fact one
12 packet of information addressing the resultsthat we |12 entity, when you compare one elementary at each
13 reported directly in the letter. | didn't formulate 13 campus and our campuses have 12. That is aneed that
14 a separate presentation. Thisisjust addressing the 14 needsto be looked at. And in the second packet that
15 data that was presented in the letter and | tried to 15 you see | made a comment at the last hearing about
16 organizeit in away that it's very clear. One of 16 the scale charts, how we compare grade by grade in
17 the first things that you notice in the letter was 17 literacy and math, how they were aimost identical. |
18 that Pine Bluff was left off the comparison when 18 just wanted you to see the visual representation of
19 comparing the other three Pulaski County schoolsto |19 that, what | was trying to explain that day, in what
20 their performance, so on the first page of your 20 you have before you. | think one of the things when
21 handout. | also want you to keep in mind they're 21 opening a charter, to be innovative, isthat there
22 opening an elementary school and here on the front 22 needs to be addressed a need -- the community needs
23 page you have a comparison of North Little Rock 23 to show a need for the charter to bein place, and |
24 Elementary and Lighthouse elementaries at 24 think that's one thing you need to keep in mind when
25 Jacksonville and Pine Bluff. If you look at the 25 considering this resubmission.

Page 14 Page 16

1 first two data tables, you see a combined score for 1 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you.

2 North Little Rock elementaries, al 12 campuses, for 2 MS. STEWART: My nameis Beth Stewart; I'm the

3 both literacy and math. They had madeanctionthat | 3 Assistant Superintendent of North Little Rock. The

4 we did not meet any of our AMO's. That istrue. 4 only thing that | want to mention today: based on

5 That | true, but for elementariesin K-5 every -- if 5 what Mr. Rodgers has told you, based on the

6 you look at our composite scores for all those, all 6 information that you have in front of you, we still

7 our elementary schools hit al eight of those targets 7 stand strongly by our -- my comment during the

8 set by the district in K-5. If you look down at the 8 hearing that they are till -- they have till shown

9 bottom, you'll see a comparison of Lighthouse and 9 no educational need in North Little Rock. Thank you.
10 North Little Rock in literacy. North Little Rock 10 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. That'sgoing to
11 scored 12.8% higher in comparing those grades for 11 conclude the opportunity to hear from the charter
12 all; 8.6% higher in TAG. Wedid fall short in math 12 applicant that has requested resubmission and any
13 at 4.8% below and 10.1% with our TAG. If youflipto |13 party who opposes the resubmission. | want to move
14 the second page of the packet, it addresses high 14 to the Panel to ask if they have any questions for
15 school, and specifically high school math. If you 15 either presenter that has presented today. Mr.
16 look down at the bottom, there you can see for us 16 Hernandez, you're recognized.
17 it's algebra and geometry. You seeacomparisonin |17 MR. HERNANDEZ: Thank you. | have aquestion
18 high school where we're 5.3% abovein al, 11.1% 18 for the North Little Rock data person.
19 abovein TAG. They did make acomment that the 19 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: If you would please come
20 majority of their 8th graders take algebra at the 8th 20 back to the mic and just state your name and
21 grade level, and so alot of that -- you see ascale 21 position, we'd appreciateit. Thank you.
22 and growth chart of all Pulaski County schools and 22 MR. GIRDLER: My nameis Ray Girdler; I'm the
23 I've noticed the Jacksonville Lighthouse and the 23 Coordinator of Testing and Data for the North Little
24 three Pulaski County schools in that demographic and |24 Rock School District.
25 that representation there. Pine Bluff was left off 25 MR. HERNANDEZ: Okay. | just wanted to clarify.
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1 On thislist that we have, on the Lighthouse portion 1 we do interim assessments five times ayear, soit's

2 of it, isthe top section literacy and the bottom 2 chunked. So, you know, you have the mega analysis at

3 section math? Isthat -- 3 the end of the year but every six weeks we have

4 MR. GIRDLER: That iscorrect. That iscorrect. 4 interim assessments in which there's the school day

5 MR. HERNANDEZ: Okay. That was my only 5 to day, which that processis following then the

6 guestion. 6 schooal.

7 MR. GIRDLER: Thank you. 7 MS. COFFMAN: Thank you.

8 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Any other questionsfrom | 8 MR. RONAN: You're welcome.

9 panel members? Ms. Coffman, you're recognized. 9 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Any other questions from the
10 MS. COFFMAN: I'd liketo ask aquestion of the |10 Panel? Okay. So our next opportunity would be
11 first gentleman for Lighthouse Charter School. 11 either for discussion between the panel members --
12 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: If you could please come |12 any discussion or amotion?
13 back up to the microphone -- 13 DR. WALTERS: Can | ask aquestion?
14 MR. RONAN: I'm Mike Ronan; I'm the founder of |14 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Sure.
15 Lighthouse Academies. 15 DR. WALTERS: Okay. So what will you be looking
16 MS. COFFMAN: Hi, Mike. My questionwasa |16 -- we're about to vote on either amotion to give
17 guestion -- you ended your conversation by saying if |17 them an opportunity to present again or to deny that
18 you needed to readdress your curriculum you would. |18 opportunity. Isthat correct?
19 And can you tell me, do you have aprocess-- what is |19 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Correct. Thisisto
20 the processin place for readdressing your 20 consider the request for them to -- for the applicant
21 curriculum? 21 to resubmit their applications for approval. And so
22 MR. RONAN: So we have aresearch development |22 what we are decided today is whether the Panel will
23 strategy team at Lighthouse Academies, national, that |23 allow that resubmission to occur so that a formal
24 reviews all of our datain-depth for every student, 24 hearing can be held or not.
25 every school, every year, against not only the Common |25 DR. WALTERS: | have amotion.

Page 18 Page 20

1 Core standards now but a so the state standards, 1 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Dr. Walters.

2 assessment results. And then we look across our 2 DR. WALTERS: | make amotion that we deny the

3 schools, looking at subgroups, targeted groups, and 3 reguest to present the application on ancther day.

4 use that data to formulate whether or not the program | 4 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: we have amotion to consider

5 -- the programming resources that arebeingused are | 5 -- to deny the consideration of Capitol City

6 being effective or whether they need to be changed. 6 Lighthouse Charter School in North Little Rock,

7 So that not only includes textbooks and materials 7 Arkansas.

8 like that, but it also includes responsive 8 MR. HERNANDEZ: I'll second.

9 intervention, pullouts, and things of that nature, 9 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: We have a second. Panel
10 professional development, which we believeisavery |10 Members, all in favor?
11 strong component of our model. So look at thedata |11 (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES)
12 and then that data is discussed with the school, the 12 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: And so since thiswas a
13 school |eader and the leadership team, and thenthat |13 denial we're going to have to go around and state the
14 team is required to develop a culture achievement 14 reasons why we are denying the opportunity for the
15 plan, which isa-- you might call it a school 15 charter to resubmit.
16 improvement plan, but it's a plan with specific 16 MR. BOARDMAN: Areyou sure about that? 'Cause
17 targets for academic growth not only for the whole 17 | thought that was just the first time.
18 school but also for any subgroups. The leadership 18 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Ms. Clay, will you clarify
19 team at that school is then evaluated on how well 19 for us please?
20 they do relative to that plan. Soit's a process 20 MS. CLAY': You don't have to give your reason on
21 that includes teacher evaluations and things of that 21 this one.
22 nature. 22 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Okay. Sowe had no nays and
23 MS. COFFMAN: And as afollow-up question, is |23 | believe that was unanimous. Do we have any nays?
24 that done annually? 24 (Brief moment of silence)
25 MR. RONAN: Yeah. It'sdoneannualy. Infact, |25 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. Thank you so
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1 much, sir. We appreciate your time. 1 indicating the microphone).
2 A-2: CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO RESUBMIT AN OPEN-ENROLLMENT 2 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Yes. I'm sorry.
3 PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION: wocomwmmous | 3 MS. KIGHT: That'sokay. I'm verticaly
4 SCHOOL, REDFIELD, ARKANSAS 4 challenged. We believe that we should be allowed to
5 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Weregoingto moveonto | 5 have another hearing because during our hearing
6 our second agendaitem. Ms. Perry, I'mgoingtoturn | 6 accidentally some of the members of the Panel were
7 this over to you, this second -- this brings usto 7 actually looking at someone else's budget, based on
8 our second agenda item which is A-2, which isthe 8 comments and questions that they asked to us during
9 Consideration of Request to Resubmit an Open- 9 our hearing. | had voiced a couple of times during
10 Enrollment Public Charter School Application for the |10 the hearing | was confused; | didn't understand where
11 Redfield Tri-County Charter School, Redfield, 11 you were getting the questions and the hearing kept
12 Arkansas. Ms. Perry. 12 proceeding. And it didn't hit me until | was driving
13 MS. PERRY: As| stated in the last item, on 13 home what had happened because | knew that wasn't my
14 November 13th and 14th the Charter Authorizing Panel |14 budget; | knew | didn't have salarieslike that. So
15 conducted hearings for open-enrollment charter 15 | had called and communicated with Mary Perry the
16 applicants wanting to open next school year. The 16 next day and kind of told her what | thought had
17 representatives of the Redfield Tri-County School 17 happened but | was going to wait for the video to
18 District appeared before the Panel on November 14th |18 come up on the website just to make sure. And so
19 and requested that Redfield Tri-County Charter 19 once the video came up on the ADE website | went back
20 School, the sponsoring entity, be allowedtoopena |20 and | found in the hearing where we had kind of
21 charter in Redfield to serve studentsin grade 5-12 21 gotten off-track alittle bit. | believeit wasthe
22 with a maximum enrollment of 375. By aunanimous |22 Quest budget that had been presented right before me
23 vote the Panel denied the application for Redfield 23 that a couple of panel members had and | believe that
24 Tri-County Charter School. Pursuant to therulesof |24 some of the comments and questions that they made may
25 Arkansas Department of Education rules governing |25 have adversely impacted some other members' opinion
Page 22 Page 24
1 public charter schools, Section 6.06.2, the applicant 1 because they were asking questions on the budget that
2 requests that the Panel consider as aresubmission, 2 wasn't really mine. | had also presented aletter of
3 allowing them to resubmit the application. 3 intent from Mr. Ken Shollmier that was for an $85,000
4 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you, Ms. Perry. Any | 4 donation; that was not taken into consideration, |
5 questions for Ms. Perry before we move forward? 5 don't believe, because there was alot of concerns
6 Okay. If you are with the Redfield Tri-County 6 over our -- how much money we had allowed for
7 Charter School applicant or if you are opposing the 7 transportation and we only had 2% left of our budget.
8 submission of the application, if you would please 8 We can go back and watch the video to kind of hear
9 stand if you plan to testify. If you would please 9 those questions. But in reality, had Mr. Shollmier's
10 raise your right hand -- do you swear to tell the 10 $85,000 been considered we had a very nice healthy 9%
11 truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth? 11 left over, which is actually more |eft over in that
12 (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY) |12 revenue verses expenditures than the two applications
13 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. Thank you. |13 that were approved had in their budget.
14 We're going to hear from -- initially from the 14 There were also questions about our curriculum.
15 charter applicant who has requested resubmission. 15 The reason we fedl that we need another hearing on
16 And if you would, please be mindful that there are 16 the curriculum part is, in July, we came to the
17 five minutes allotted for your timeto speak andthat |17 workshop that Mary Perry presented for us and we
18 would include anyone you would like to speak on 18 learned alot and took lots of notes, did lots of
19 behalf of the resubmission to be considered. So if 19 things. And one of the things that we immediately
20 you would, please state your name and your five 20 tried to do wasto join the APSRC so we could have
21 minutes will begin. 21 access to a Curriculum Specidlist, because that was
22 MS. KIGHT: My nameis AmandaKight and I'll be |22 one of the services that they provide when you become
23 speaking today on behalf of Redfield Tri-County 23 amember. Well, we did put in our application but we
24 Charter School. Isthat too high? 24 were denied because we did not have approval yet for
25 (COURT REPORTER'SNOTE: Ms. Kight was 25 acharter school. So wekind of thought, Okay, maybe
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1 we shouldn't have to have it well-defined at this 1 process.
2 point. And then we looked at the question in the 2 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you very much. Anyone
3 application and the verbiage in that question on the 3 who is here to speak in opposition of the
4 curriculum actually says, "What processwill beused | 4 application?
5 to define an aligned curriculum?' So | admit wewere | 5 (Brief moment of silence)
6 weak the first presentation on our curriculum 6 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you.
7 definition, but that was kind of based on the 7 MS. KIGHT: Thank you.
8 experience we had trying to get into the APSRC andin | 8 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Panel Members, questions
9 the wording of the question on the application. We 9 that you may have of the applicant?
10 will gladly be able to go get the services of the 10 DR. WALTERS: | have aquestion for Ms. Perry.
11 Curriculum Speciaist and we will have amuch better |11 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Ms. Perry, if you could
12 defined curriculum if we are allowed to come back 12 please come up to the mic. Thank you.
13 before you. We will submit arevised budget that 13 MS. PERRY: Yes, maam.
14 includes Mr. Shollmier's $85,000 donation so there 14 DR. WALTERS: Ms. Perry, the issue with the
15 will be less confusion over how much our net revenue- |15 budget, I'm just trying to get straightened out to
16 to-expenditurereally is. And we just wanted to 16 make sure I'm looking at the correct budget. | don't
17 reiterate that, you know, we are a grassroots 17 remember every question that | asked but | remember
18 efforts; we are nothing but volunteers; we have spent |18 that one of the questions that | asked the group was
19 thousands -- over 1,000 hours preparing for this. We |19 that they had $5,000 budgeted for two buses, for two
20 really have worked hard. Our application wasaclean |20 used buses. Am | looking at the correct budget?
21 application. | looked at all the other applicants; 21 MS. PERRY: The applicant is confirming that you
22 the application that we had, in my opinion, is that 22 are looking at the correct budget.
23 we were avery strong contender. We had met the 23 MS. KIGHT: Yes. Youand Mr. Hoy were looking
24 standard on 11 of the questions. There were very few |24 at the correct budget.
25 issues raised in our responses. We addressed all 25 DR. WALTERS: Okay. All right. Okay. | just
Page 26 Page 28
1 those and when we got our summary there was one 1 needed to make sure | was looking at the right thing.
2 outstanding issue with the Gifted and Talented and we | 2 Thank you.
3 addressed that successfully. We really believe that 3 MS. KIGHT: May | add one thing to that? But
4 we are speaking for the people in the Redfield Tri- 4 the budget you were looking at --
5 County area. We have amost 800 signaturesandyou | 5 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: I'm sorry. If you could,
6 bump that up against alot of these other 6 please come back to the mic and state your name. I'm
7 applications, they had 500 signatures and they'rein 7 sorry. Thank you.
8 urban areas with lots of population. We're talking 8 MS. KIGHT: My nameis AmandaKight. And the
9 about arural part of the areain Arkansas where 9 budget that you are looking at did not have the LOI
10 those three counties come together, where it's people |10 from Mr. Shollmier init. Andif you'd included
11 living on acres and acres of land. There'snot a 11 that, then we have a surplus and | think we have
12 dense population. We have almost 800 signatures. 12 enough funds to totally address your concern of the
13 The families there are crying out to have aschool in |13 maintenance -- and double it, if we need to -- and
14 that area. The surrounding middle schoolsin our 14 till having revenue left over at theend. And one
15 area-- | believe this past year they were all in the 15 thing | wanted to bring up too -- being in this spot
16 Needs Improvement category and we would likethe |16 for meis not acomfortable position. It's hard to
17 opportunity to provide a choice for the people that 17 get up and speak in front of people; it's hard to get
18 livein our areato have a school in that community 18 up and speak for awhole community of people. There
19 that welcomes everybody in that areaand hopefully |19 was alot of pressure. And when you got off on the
20 can provide a great education. Strong community 20 wrong budget, that happened at kind of the very
21 support -- | mean, thisis"for the community, by the |21 beginning of our hearing; it was 10 or 15 minutesin,
22 community." Okay? Andwefed if weregiventhe |22 maybe. And it really rocked me and | did not -- |
23 opportunity to represent and more strongly address 23 should have been able to address your concern on the
24 those two areas of concern that you'll see that we 24 maintenance with Mr. Shollmier's letter, and | did
25 are well-prepared and committed to finishing this 25 not do that; | failed to do that. But having those
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1 questions at the beginning with the state director, 1 don't have any money anyway. | mean, basically none
2 $90,000, .25 -- and I'm sitting there kind of going, 2 of the charter schools -- their budgets are based on
3 "I'm not sure what numbersyou're looking at." | was | 3 anticipated enrollments and anticipation anyway, so
4 really rocked, you know, and it really did -- | did 4 --
5 not do avery good job. | actually did a poor job 5 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Questions from the Panel?
6 addressing your concerns over the textbooks and the 6 Ms. Coffman, you're recognized. Who would you like
7 transportation. But | do believethat that is -- 7 to bring to the mic?
8 that if Mr. Shollmier's letter is considered, per the 8 MS. COFFMAN: Her. If you recal in our
9 LOI amount that he had, that we have plenty of money | 9 previous conversations about curriculum, | think
10 to address those concerns. 10 you've addressed that today. And so my question is:
11 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Mr. Hernandez, whowouldyou | 11 what has changed in your relationship with seeking
12 like to bring to the mic? 12 services from APSRC?
13 MR. HERNANDEZ: Same person. 13 MS. KIGHT: Now that we know that itisa
14 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Sorry. 14 reguirement to have a better defined curriculum we
15 MS. KIGHT: Do | haveto state my nameagain? |15 are more than willing to spend that money right now,
16 MR. HERNANDEZ: | just have a question in 16 money that we have in the bank for our organization,
17 regards to Mr. Shollmier. Mr. Shollmier, the 17 and get that done without being a member of APSRC.
18 $85,000, is that going to be an annual reoccurring 18 Because we were trying to watch our -- be fiscally
19 deal or -- 19 responsible and we thought we'd pay the $2,500 to
20 MS. KIGHT: No. That letter, the LOI, theway | |20 APSRC and get that service provided. But based on
21 understand Mr. Shollmier'sintent for thisyear wasa |21 the work and the hours and the time involved in doing
22 one-time donation. Now he did not include that he 22 thiswhole process | would gladly go -- | would pay
23 would give us more money in our second year, but he |23 for it, you know, just 'cause | want us to have the
24 did not -- we did not go that far with him in asking 24 best possible chance.
25 for that. 25 MS. COFFMAN: Okay.
Page 30 Page 32
1 MR. HERNANDEZ: Okay. Thank you. 1 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: I'm sorry, just amoment.
2 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Mr. Hoy, yourerecognized | 2 Any additional questions that you have for her?
3 for questions. 3 MS. COFFMAN: | was just wondering what your
4 MR. HOY: Thank you. | think my questionisfor | 4 aternative plan -- you said you would gladly pay.
5 Lega. Do we have someone from Legal? 5 But how are you going to seek those services?
6 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Ms. Clay or Mr. Lasiter,if | 6 MS. KIGHT: A couple of different avenues. I've
7 you could please come to the mic. Thank you. 7 talked to a couple of different educators and they
8 MR. HOY: Clarification on donations. Isit 8 have given me a couple of names -- they had a couple
9 allowable to include donations not yet received in a 9 of names that they would be willing to provide me
10 budget in this scenario? 10 that are Curriculum Specialists| can contact. And
11 MR. LASITER: | mean, it's certainly allowable 11 the other oneis Mr. Shollmier, who has become
12 to consider that as a panel and, you know, youwant |12 involved in this process. He has offered to work
13 to weigh with them isit certainly money that'sgoing |13 with the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville and
14 to be there. There's nothing that says that you 14 get them to do our curriculum for us. So | have
15 can't consider that as a part of -- going toward 15 those two options on the table. One of them, | know,
16 their budget to get started. Y ou know, it's my 16 is an attempt, kind of like aletter of intent, but |
17 understanding that charter applicantsroutinely take |17 don't have that letter of intent so | can tell you
18 donations. | mean, they are a501(c)(3) organization |18 that my back-up plan -- because idedlly | would love
19 so they routinely take donations in order to get 19 the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville to do my
20 started. So it's something that you certainly can 20 curriculum. That would be great. If that falls
21 consider. 21 through, then we would pay -- | would pay out of my
22 MR. HOY: Okay. 22 own money to get that done.
23 MR. BOARDMAN: WEell, and actually they don't -- |23 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. Any other
24 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Mr. Boardman? 24 questions from the panel members? Discussion between
25 MR. BOARDMAN: Yesh. Thank you. Actualy, they |25 the panel members? Thank you so much.
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1 MS. KIGHT: One thing. 1 DR. WALTERS: Aye.
2 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Sure. 2 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Any opposed?
3 MS. KIGHT: Mr. Shollmier had intended to be 3 MR. BOARDMAN: No.
4 here today with us so he could speak but he has 4 MS. COFFMAN: No.
5 recently purchased a building in Redfield and its 5 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: We have two opposed. Mr.
6 been vacant for awhile. It'slike 9,000 square 6 Laditer, if we have opposition do we need to state
7 feet. And hejust -- with the weather moving in he's 7 why we have opposition?
8 had some issues with some possible freezing pipes 8 MR. LASITER: No, ma'am. You just want to make
9 that he'strying to address. But he has committed to 9 sure -- was it a three-to-two vote?
10 -- if we get arehearing, he will be present and so 10 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Yes, sir. A three-to-two
11 we could include him and he would be a speaker onour |11 vote to deny the resubmission for the charter
12 behalf. 12 application for the Tri-field [sic] County -- I'm
13 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. Any discussion |13 sorry, | apologize -- for the Tri-County Charter
14 between panel members? 14 School for Redfield, Arkansas. Mr. Lasiter, did you
15 MR. BOARDMAN: Yeah. Thisisbetweenus. | |15 have another comment? I'm sorry.
16 don't know exactly if we decide to do this, the 16 MR. LASITER: Well, just whenever you're --
17 timing, how this relates to when the hearing would 17 before we adjourn.
18 be, when it would have to be, and when afinal 18 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Yes, sir. | dowant to
19 decision would have to be made and all that. Do 19 thank you for coming back out and | understand what
20 y'dl -- dowe-- 20 the concerns were in terms of the budget. But | do
21 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Ms. Clay or Ms. Perry, if |21 want to note that | think we encouraged you after the
22 you would, please come address that question. Mr. 22 conclusion to go forth and begin looking and working
23 Boardman, his question is what the timeline would 23 through the curriculum process, and | would still
24 look like if we did allow aresubmission of the 24 encourage you to do so for that resubmission to occur
25 charter application to occur. 25 at alater date. So, thank you so much for coming.
Page 34 Page 36
1 MR. LASITER: | know that you have a panel 1 We appreciate it.
2 meeting scheduled for, | guess, January but you could | 2 MR. BOARDMAN: Can| --
3 also call your own meeting if you decided to re-hear 3 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: I'msorry. Mr. Boardman,
4 it. Interms of timing for the State Board, there 4 you're recoghized.
5 are two different authorizersin this process; 5 MR. BOARDMAN: | would like to really encourage
6 there's you and the State Board. So | would worry 6 that also. | don't think of all the people that have
7 about -- focus on your own process and what you want | 7 been before us | have had a group that was any more
8 to do and then, of course, that process -- whatever 8 sincere and any more dedicated to make this work than
9 finding that you make could be reviewed by the State | 9 thisgroup. And | know it would be difficult to go
10 Board under the timelines under the law. 10 back and try to do some of thisagain, but | think it
11 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. 11 will be worth it because | really think that y'all
12 MR. LASITER: So really the timing is open. 12 have the students’ best interest in mind and you're
13 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Thank you. Any other |13 trying to do something right.
14 discussion among panel members or follow-up 14 DR. WALTERS: Can | say something?
15 questions? 15 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Dr. Walters, you're
16 MR. HERNANDEZ: I'll make amotion to deny the |16 recognized.
17 request for arehearing. 17 DR. WALTERS: And | know we don't have to tell
18 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: we have amotion to deny the | 18 our reasons but | just -- because | know the group
19 request for aresubmission of the charter 19 feels like there was a technicality with the budget
20 application. 20 and | just want to make sure that you understand that
21 MR. HOY: Second. 21 my reasons for voting to deny last time weren't
22 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Second from Mr. Hoy. All |22 because of the budget questions that anyone raised
23 those in favor? 23 that was from an erroneous budget. Y ou know, there
24 MR. HERNANDEZ: Aye. 24 were several reasons and | think you're working
25 MR. HOY: Aye. 25 towards addressing some of those but, you know, |
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Page 37 Page 39
1 didn't feel like today that what was brought to us 1
2 was areason to bring it back up this soon. But | 2
3 agree with what Mr. Boardman said, aswell. Thank 3
4 you. 4
5 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: And I would concur alsowith | 5
6 the budget issue. That might -- | would -- | am 6
7 interested to see what the curriculum might look 7
8 like, something that we -- tangible that we could 8
9 review and something we could actually look forward | 9
10 to. Sointerms of the panel, Mr. Lasiter, well 10
11 turn it over to you. 11
12 MR. LASITER: Just acouple of things. | wanted |12
13 to make sure everyone knows that regardiess of what |13
14 happened today in this meeting these applications 14
15 will still be on the agenda of the next State Board 15
16 of Education meeting. Now that meeting was scheduled |16
17 to take place on Monday but we'verecently learned |17
18 this afternoon it's going to be postponed one week 18
19 due to the weather. So just for the applicants that 19
20 are here today, the State Board of Education till 20
21 has an independent right of review of each one of 21
22 these decisions and so they will be on the agendafor |22
23 the next State Board of Education meeting. Andthe |23
24 State Board of Education will decide at that point 24 A-1
25 whether to exercise its own right of review. If it 25 EXHIBIT ONE (1)
Page 38 Page 40
1 does that, there will be afull hearing before the 1
2 State Board. So | just wanted to make sure that 2
3 everyone was aware of that process, number one. And | 3
4 then, number two, that everyone was aware of thefact | 4
5 that we are not going to have a State Board meeting 5
6 on Monday; it will happen the next following Monday, | 6
7 which | believe isthe 16th at 9:00 in this room. 7
8 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI: Sowewill -- the State | 8
9 Board of Education will be meeting on Monday, the 9
10 16th, and will begin at 8:00 [sic] and that will be 10
11 an opportunity for the State Board to -- I'm sorry -- 11
12 9:00 am. That will be the next opportunity for the 12
13 State Board to review applications. 13
14 Thank you. This meeting is adjourned. 14
15 15
16 (The meeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m.) 16
17 17
18 18
19 19
20 20
21 21
22 22
23 23
24 24 A-1
25 25 EXHIBIT TWO (2)
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PROCEEDI NGS

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Good afternoon. W' re going
to go ahead and get started. W' ve got the nmenbers
of the Charter Authorizing Panel here with us, and
t hank you so nuch for those of you who were able to
conme and join us and be in attendance today. W
definitely appreciate your tinme and appreciate you
under standi ng the short notice in terms of the
tineline that we're under. M nane is Megan
Wtonski; I'mthe vice chair of the Charter
Aut hori zi ng Panel and | am going to be serving as
chair today for Dr. Tom Kinbrell who could not be
with us in attendance today. The Charter Authorizing
Panel -- | just want to nake sure that we are clear
on why we are neeting today so that we are all on the
sane page. W are neeting today to consider the
application requests of two open-enrol |l ment charter
applicants and this is for the charter applicants to
actually resubmt their application for approval.
And there were two applications that woul d be
considered for this, which would be Capitol City
Li ght house Charter School in North Little Rock,
Arkansas, and also for Redfield Tri-County Charter
School in Redfield, Arkansas.

So just to clarify before we nove forward,
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Arkansas |aw and the State Board of Education rules
state that an authorizer may allow an applicant for
an open-enrol |l ment public charter school to resubmt
their application if the original application was
found to be deficient in sone way. So before we
begin with the agenda itens | want to make sure that
we all understand why we are here today and explain
to those that are present that the decision before
the Panel today is to decide whether or not to allow
t hose applications to be reconsidered. And if we
vote to allow resubm ssion we will need to schedule a
future hearing date for the charter applicant and
t hose applications would be heard at that tine. So
before we go further | just want to ask the Charter
Panel if you guys have any questions before we nove
f orward?

(Brief moment of silence)

CHAI RVAN WTONSKI: So with the consent of the
Panel, if everyone is okay and doesn't have any
guestions, we are going to allow each party to speak
for five mnutes on the limted question of whether
t he Panel should allow the applicant to submt --
resubmt their charter application. And, again,
want to nmake sure that we're very clear that the --

we want to enphasize with the speakers that are here
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with us today, this is not a full hearing. W are
not here to conduct full hearings for either
potential or proposed charter applications. This is
sinply to determ ne whether we will allow a
resubm ssion of the application to enact a ful
hearing. And | just want to clarify that, instead,
as a panel we want to hear why we should or should
not hear or allow a resubm ssion of your application
in a hearing process. And we want to make sure al so
that we hear fromthe party who initially requested
the application first and then we can follow that
wi th anyone who nmay have any opposition to the
resubm ssion being allowed. So after we've had
presentation by both parties then | wll open the
floor, Panel Menbers, to you so that if you have any
questions or you need further clarification we can do
that at that tinme. So, Panel Menbers, is everyone
okay wth that in terns of noving forward with this
process?

(Al'l Panel Menbers answered affirmatively)

CHAI RVAN WTONSKI: So we will be setting a
timer for you to be allowed to have tine to be -- to
speak on the floor and I just want to clarify that's
five mnutes for each group. So if you are the

applicant who is asking for the resubm ssion of why
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we shoul d hear the application again or have a ful
hearing, you would have five mnutes and,
col l ectively, those in opposition would al so have
five m nutes.
A-1: CONSI DERATI ON OF REQUEST TO RESUBM T AN OPEN- ENROLLMENT
PUBLI C CHARTER SCHOOL APPLI CATI ON: CAPITOL G TY LI GATHOUSE
CHARTER SCHOOL, NORTH LI TTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  So before we begin | woul d
ask that we bring Ms. Mary Perry, if you would --
we' ve got our agenda itens that are included and |
believe first up on our agenda itemis ItemA-1,
which is the Consideration of Request to Resubmt an
Open-Enrol I nent Public School Charter Application;
that is for Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School,
in North Little Rock, Arkansas. And so if you could
introduce this itemto us and share sone information,
we' d appreciate it.

M5. PERRY: Thank you. On Novenber 13th and
14t h, 2013, the Charter Authorizing Panel conducted
hearings for open-enrollment charter applicants
wanting to open schools in 2014-2015.
Representatives of Capitol City Lighthouse Charter
School appeared before the panel on Novenber 13th and
requested that Lighthouse Academ es of Central

Arkansas, |ncorporated, the sponsoring entity, be
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all owed to open a charter in North Little Rock to
serve students in grade K-12 with a maxi num
enrol | ment of 750. Representatives of the North
Little Rock School District and the Little Rock
School District spoke in opposition to the charter.
By a five-to-one vote the Panel denied the
application for Capitol Gty Lighthouse Charter
School. And pursuant, as Dr. Wtonski said, to
Section 6.06.2 of the Arkansas Departnent of
Education rul es governing public charter schools, the
applicant is here to request the Panel consider
all owi ng the resubm ssion of the application. You do
have fol ks who would need to be sworn in for both --
there are representatives here fromNorth Little
Rock, as well as the applicant. And you have two
pi eces of information in front of you. One of them
i ndi cat es Li ght house -- Lighthouse has that and |'m
sure they'll tell you what those are. There is
anot her packet with paper that's stapled and North
Littl e Rock asks that you have that information
Thank you.

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI :  Thank you, Ms. Perry. Any
questions for Ms. Perry before we nove forward?
kay. 1'd like for anyone that is associated with

the Capitol Gty Lighthouse Charter School who plans
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to speak for the application to be resubmtted for a
hearing to pl ease stand, and anyone who would like to
oppose the Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School in
North Little Rock, Arkansas, who plans to testify, if
you woul d pl ease stand. |f you would, please raise
your right hand. Do you swear to tell the truth, the
whol e truth and nothing but the truth?
(ALL W TNESSES ANSWERED AFFI RVATI VELY)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. You may be
seated. We're going to begin with the open-
enrol I ment applicant for the charter application that
IS requesting resubm ssion, and that woul d be from
Capitol Gty Lighthouse Charter School.

MR. RONAN: Good afternoon.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. If you woul d,
just state your nanme and | just want to rem nd you
t hat you and anyone that is here to testify on behalf
of have five mnutes and I will begin that process
NOW.

MR RONAN. My nane is Mchael Ronan; |I'mthe
founder and CEO of Lighthouse Academ es. | began ny
career in education as a mddle school teacher.
taught math, English and history. Eventually, |
becane a school superintendent and | was a school

superintendent for 16 years in the ninth | onwest
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spendi ng school district in Massachusetts. | founded
Li ght house Academ es in 2003. W cane here to
Arkansas in 2009, opened our first charter school in
Jacksonville; expanded that school at the request of
the US. Ar Force, to the Air Force Base, and opened
a school in Pine Bluff. W submtted an application
with the applicant to open a school in North Little
Rock. You heard the application and it was deni ed,
and the reasons for denial in the letter fromthe
Arkansas Department of Education were two things: one
was the curriculum questions about the curricul um

t he education program and the other was about the
test results. | want to ask for reconsideration so
that these matters may be considered nore fully and
that we can respond nore fully in a new hearing to

t hose questi ons.

Today, |I'mgoing to highly just three things,
given the tinme allotted. | think the first thing,
which is technical and wasn't nmentioned in the denia
letter, is the question about whether or not the
North Little Rock School District had proper notice
for the application. And as you can see from readi ng
our docunents, we have spelled out all of the points
at which the North Little Rock School District had

proper notice. In addition, the Departnent of
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Education found that the applicant net that standard.
In | ooking at the mnutes fromthe North Little Rock
School Board meeting, in which the application was
di scussed, the North Little Rock School District

deni ed the application based on perception of their
failure to have the application to review. That's
sinmply not supported by the record. But it's
inmportant to know that the North Little Rock School
District did not deny the application based on its
nmerits. And in the absence of a denial based on
nmerits we can only conclude that there were no

obj ections by the school board to the application
based on the nerits of the application.

In ternms of the assessnent results, the
Power Poi nt details conparisons of the results of the
Li ght house schools in Arkansas conpared to North
Little Rock, Little Rock, and Pul aski County. And
you can see on al nost every neasure, |ooking at
students who have only been in these schools for |ess
than five years, that these students do in fact out-
performin the aggregate the school districts from
whi ch we woul d draw students to Capitol City. And
understand at the hearing that the North Little Rock
data was not available for the Panel to consider in

the manner in which we would present it to you if
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given the opportunity to have a re-hearing.

The | ast point I want to nmake is around the
education program So |'ve been in education a |ong
time. | taught mathematics. | understand that there
are concerns about Saxon math. W hear that from
time to tinme around the country. But in fact, Saxon
math is a state-approved program It is approved to
use in Arkansas schools. W have used it effectively
in Pine Bluff where we have one of the few achieving
schools in mathematics in the State of Arkansas.
There are places where it doesn't work. In another
opportunity to present we would in fact detail how we
have in fact brought new mathematic curriculumto our
schools to in fact do those things that allow
students to be prepared to take the new assessments
that are aligned with the Common Core.

So | know there were a | ot of other things
di scussed at that hearing based upon what |'ve heard
fromour teamand |I'd be happy to respond to any and
all those issues that are raised. But in the context
of should you grant us the opportunity to present
again, | would focus on three things: there was no
deni al of our application on the basis of merit by
the North Little Rock School District; the test

results show that our schools are in fact,
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particularly the students who have been in our
schools for nmore than two years, are doing extrenely
well; and, third, we have a curriculumthat produces
t hose results and when we need to nake adjustnments we
make those adjustnments. Thank you very nuch.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. W are going to
al so hear fromany party that w shes to oppose the
resubm ssion. |If you would, please cone forward,
state your name. And | just want to rem nd you as we
nove forward that, again, it's five mnutes
collectively -- and | don't knowif there is anyone
el se in opposition that you'll be sharing this tine
with. But otherw se, we are going to open the floor
to you. And if you would, just state your nanme as
you begin. Thank you.

SUPT. RODGERS: M nane is Kelly Rodgers; |'m
Superi ntendent of Schools in North Little Rock and |
do appreciate you giving us notice and letting us
have tine to speak to each of you. Mne is very
short. | did not receive notice -- and it may have
been because of the transition of the superintendent.
The superintendent was actually out of -- had left
and was on vacation as | took over, so that. And the
fact that the board -- we had limted information at

the tinme that we made the decision to oppose that and
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that's the reason you didn't see nore detail in the
board agenda. So |I'mgoing to keep m ne short and
|'mgoing to turn it over to Ray Grdler, who has
information in the packet that you have today. Thank
you.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. If you would,
when you cone to the mc please state your nane.
Thank you.

MR G RDLER M nane is Ray Grdler; | amthe
Coordi nator of Data and Testing for the North Little
Rock School District. Today, | brought to you a
packet of information addressing the results that we
reported directly in the letter. | didn't fornulate
a separate presentation. This is just addressing the
data that was presented in the letter and | tried to
organize it in a way that it's very clear. One of
the first things that you notice in the letter was
that Pine Bluff was |eft off the conparison when
conparing the other three Pul aski County schools to
their performance, so on the first page of your
handout. | also want you to keep in mnd they're
opening an el ementary school and here on the front
page you have a conparison of North Little Rock
El ementary and Li ght house el enentaries at

Jacksonville and Pine Bluff. |If you |ook at the
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first two data tables, you see a conbined score for
North Little Rock elenentaries, all 12 canpuses, for
both literacy and math. They had made a notion that
we did not neet any of our AMOs. That is true.

That | true, but for elenentaries in K-5 every -- if
you | ook at our conposite scores for all those, al

our elementary schools hit all eight of those targets
set by the district in K-5. If you | ook down at the
bottom you'll see a conparison of Lighthouse and
North Little Rock in literacy. North Little Rock
scored 12.8% hi gher in conparing those grades for
all; 8.6%higher in TAG W did fall short in math
at 4.8% bel ow and 10. 1% wth our TAG If you flip to
t he second page of the packet, it addresses high
school, and specifically high school math. If you

| ook down at the bottom there you can see for us
it's algebra and geonetry. You see a comparison in
hi gh school where we're 5.3% above in all, 11.1%
above in TAG They did nmake a comment that the
majority of their 8th graders take algebra at the 8th
grade level, and so a lot of that -- you see a scale
and growm h chart of all Pulaski County schools and
|'ve noticed the Jacksonville Lighthouse and the

t hree Pul aski County schools in that denographic and

that representation there. Pine Bluff was |eft off
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because al gebra at the high school is not available
for them And there you can see where the Pul ask
County school s rank and where Jacksonville ranks as
far as the 8th grade scores are concerned. So these
are the 8th graders taking algebra early. [If you
flip to the last page of the handout, this is a
conpi l ed representation of the data they presented in
their letter but with the inclusion of Pine Bluff
schools with the Jacksonville schools together. So
you see a comnbined | ook of their overall scores, if
you were to conpile them-- and they are in fact one
entity, when you conpare one el enentary at each
canpus and our campuses have 12. That is a need that
needs to be | ooked at. And in the second packet that
you see | made a comment at the | ast hearing about
the scale charts, how we conpare grade by grade in
literacy and math, how they were al nost identical. |
just wanted you to see the visual representation of
that, what | was trying to explain that day, in what
you have before you. | think one of the things when
opening a charter, to be innovative, is that there
needs to be addressed a need -- the comunity needs
to show a need for the charter to be in place, and |
think that's one thing you need to keep in mnd when

considering this resubm ssion.
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CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you.

M5. STEWART: M nane is Beth Stewart; |I'mthe
Assi stant Superintendent of North Little Rock. The
only thing that | want to nmention today: based on
what M. Rodgers has told you, based on the
information that you have in front of you, we stil
stand strongly by our -- ny comment during the
hearing that they are still -- they have still shown

no educational need in North Little Rock. Thank you.

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. That's going to
concl ude the opportunity to hear fromthe charter
appl i cant that has requested resubm ssion and any
party who opposes the resubmssion. | want to nove
to the Panel to ask if they have any questions for
ei ther presenter that has presented today. M.

Her nandez, you're recogni zed.

MR. HERNANDEZ: Thank you. | have a question
for the North Little Rock data person

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI : | f you woul d pl ease cone
back to the mc and just state your nanme and
position, we'd appreciate it. Thank you.

MR GRDLER M nanme is Ray Grdler; I'mthe
Coordi nator of Testing and Data for the North Little
Rock School District.

MR. HERNANDEZ: Okay. | just wanted to clarify.
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On this list that we have, on the Lighthouse portion
of it, is the top section literacy and the bottom
section math? 1Is that --

MR G RDLER That is correct. That is correct.

MR. HERNANDEZ: Ckay. That was ny only
guesti on.

MR. G RDLER  Thank you.

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI :  Any ot her questions from
panel menbers? Ms. Coffman, you' re recognized.

MS. COFFMAN: |1'd like to ask a question of the
first gentleman for Lighthouse Charter School .

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI : | f you coul d pl ease cone
back up to the m crophone --

MR RONAN:  |I'm M ke Ronan; |'mthe founder of
Li ght house Acadenmi es.

M5. COFFMAN. Hi, Mke. M question was a
question -- you ended your conversation by saying if
you needed to readdress your curriculumyou woul d.
And can you tell ne, do you have a process -- what is
the process in place for readdressing your
curricul un?

MR RONAN.  So we have a research devel opnent
strategy team at Lighthouse Academ es, national, that
reviews all of our data in-depth for every student,

every school, every year, against not only the Conmon
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Core standards now but also the state standards,
assessnent results. And then we | ook across our
school s, | ooking at subgroups, targeted groups, and
use that data to fornul ate whether or not the program
-- the progranm ng resources that are being used are
bei ng effective or whether they need to be changed.
So that not only includes textbooks and materials
like that, but it also includes responsive
intervention, pullouts, and things of that nature,
pr of essi onal devel opnent, which we believe is a very
strong conponent of our nodel. So |ook at the data
and then that data is discussed with the school, the
school | eader and the | eadership team and then that
teamis required to develop a culture achi evenent
plan, which is a -- you might call it a school
i nprovenment plan, but it's a plan with specific
targets for academic growh not only for the whole
school but also for any subgroups. The |eadership
team at that school is then evaluated on how well
they do relative to that plan. So it's a process
t hat includes teacher evaluations and things of that
nat ur e.

MS. COFFMAN. And as a followup question, is
t hat done annually?

MR. RONAN:. Yeah. |It's done annually. In fact,
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we do interimassessnents five tinmes a year, so it's
chunked. So, you know, you have the nega anal ysis at
the end of the year but every six weeks we have
interimassessnments in which there's the school day
to day, which that process is follow ng then the
school .

M5. COFFMAN.  Thank you.

MR, RONAN:  You're wel cone.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Any ot her questions fromthe
Panel ? Okay. So our next opportunity would be
ei ther for discussion between the panel nenbers --
any di scussion or a notion?

DR. WALTERS: Can | ask a question?

CHAl RMVAN W TONSKI :  Sur e.

DR WALTERS: kay. So what will you be | ooking
-- we're about to vote on either a notion to give
t hem an opportunity to present again or to deny that
opportunity. |Is that correct?

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI:  Correct. This is to
consider the request for themto -- for the applicant
to resubmt their applications for approval. And so
what we are decided today is whether the Panel wl |
all ow that resubm ssion to occur so that a fornal
hearing can be held or not.

DR. WALTERS: | have a notion
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CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: Dr. Wlters.

DR. WALTERS: | make a notion that we deny the
request to present the application on another day.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : W have a notion to consider
-- to deny the consideration of Capitol City
Li ght house Charter School in North Little Rock,

Ar kansas.

MR, HERNANDEZ: |'I| second.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : W have a second. Panel
Menbers, all in favor?

( UNANI MOUS CHORUS OF AYES)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  And so since this was a
denial we're going to have to go around and state the
reasons why we are denying the opportunity for the
charter to resubmt.

MR. BOARDMAN: Are you sure about that? ' Cause
| thought that was just the first tinme.

CHAI RMVAN WTONSKI: Ms. Clay, will you clarify
for us pl ease?

M5. CLAY: You don't have to give your reason on
this one.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Ckay. So we had no nays and
| believe that was unani nous. Do we have any nays?

(Brief nonment of silence)

CHAl RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Thank you so
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much, sir. W appreciate your tine.

CONSI DERATI ON OF REQUEST TO RESUBM T AN OPEN- ENRCLLMENT

PUBLI C CHARTER SCHOCL APPLI CATI ON: REDFI ELD TRI - COUNTY CHARTER

SCHOOL, REDFI ELD, ARKANSAS

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: We're going to nove on to

21

our second agenda item Ms. Perry, I'mgoing to turn

this over to you, this second -- this brings us to
our second agenda itemwhich is A-2, which is the
Consi deration of Request to Resubmit an Open-
Enrol I ment Public Charter School Application for the
Redfield Tri-County Charter School, Redfield,
Arkansas. Ms. Perry.

MS. PERRY: As | stated in the last item on
Novenber 13th and 14th the Charter Authorizing Pane
conduct ed hearings for open-enrollnent charter
applicants wanting to open next school year. The
representatives of the Redfield Tri-County School
District appeared before the Panel on Novenber 14th
and requested that Redfield Tri-County Charter
School, the sponsoring entity, be allowed to open a
charter in Redfield to serve students in grade 5-12
with a maxi mnum enrol | nent of 375. By a unani nous
vote the Panel denied the application for Redfield
Tri-County Charter School. Pursuant to the rules of

Arkansas Departnent of Education rul es governing
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public charter schools, Section 6.06.2, the applicant
requests that the Panel consider as a resubm ssion,
allowing themto resubmt the application

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI :  Thank you, Ms. Perry. Any
questions for Ms. Perry before we nove forward?
kay. If you are with the Redfield Tri-County
Charter School applicant or if you are opposing the
subm ssion of the application, if you would pl ease
stand if you plan to testify. If you would pl ease
rai se your right hand -- do you swear to tell the
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

(ALL W TNESSES ANSWERED AFFI RVATI VELY)

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Thank you
We're going to hear from-- initially fromthe
charter applicant who has requested resubm ssion.
And if you woul d, please be mndful that there are
five mnutes allotted for your tine to speak and that
woul d i ncl ude anyone you would |ike to speak on
behal f of the resubm ssion to be considered. So if
you woul d, pl ease state your nane and your five
mnutes w Il begin.

MS. KIGHT: M nanme is Amanda Kight and I'Il be
speaki ng today on behalf of Redfield Tri-County
Charter School. |Is that too high?

(COURT REPORTER S NOTE: Ms. Ki ght was
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i ndi cating the m crophone).

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI:  Yes. |I'msorry.

MS. KIGHT: That's okay. I|'mvertically
chal  enged. W believe that we should be allowed to
have anot her hearing because during our hearing
accidentally sonme of the nenbers of the Panel were
actual |y | ooking at sonmeone el se's budget, based on
comments and questions that they asked to us during
our hearing. | had voiced a couple of times during
the hearing | was confused; | didn't understand where
you were getting the questions and the hearing kept
proceeding. And it didn't hit me until | was driving
honme what had happened because | knew that wasn't ny
budget; | knew | didn't have salaries like that. So
| had called and comunicated with Mary Perry the
next day and kind of told her what | thought had
happened but | was going to wait for the video to
conme up on the website just to nmake sure. And so
once the video cane up on the ADE website | went back
and | found in the hearing where we had ki nd of
gotten off-track a little bit. | believe it was the
Quest budget that had been presented right before ne
that a couple of panel nenbers had and | believe that
some of the comments and questions that they nmade may

have adversely inpacted sone ot her nenbers' opinion
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because they were asking questions on the budget that
wasn't really mne. | had also presented a letter of
intent fromM. Ken Shollmer that was for an $85, 000
donation; that was not taken into consideration,
don't believe, because there was a | ot of concerns
over our -- how nuch noney we had all owed for
transportation and we only had 2% | eft of our budget.
We can go back and watch the video to kind of hear
t hose questions. But in reality, had M. Shollmer's
$85, 000 been considered we had a very nice heal thy 9%
| eft over, which is actually nore left over in that
revenue verses expenditures than the two applications
t hat were approved had in their budget.

There were al so questions about our curricul um
The reason we feel that we need another hearing on
the curriculumpart is, in July, we cane to the
wor kshop that Mary Perry presented for us and we
| earned a ot and took lots of notes, did lots of
things. And one of the things that we i mediately
tried to do was to join the APSRC so we coul d have
access to a Curriculum Speci alist, because that was
one of the services that they provide when you becone
a menber. Well, we did put in our application but we
wer e deni ed because we did not have approval yet for

a charter school. So we kind of thought, Ckay, maybe
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we shoul dn't have to have it well-defined at this
point. And then we | ooked at the question in the
application and the verbiage in that question on the
curriculumactual ly says, "What process will be used
to define an aligned curriculun?" So | admt we were
weak the first presentation on our curriculum
definition, but that was kind of based on the
experience we had trying to get into the APSRC and in
t he wording of the question on the application. W
will gladly be able to go get the services of the
Curriculum Specialist and we will have a much better
defined curriculumif we are allowed to come back
before you. W will submt a revised budget that
includes M. Shollmer's $85,000 donation so there
wi Il be | ess confusion over how nuch our net revenue-
to-expenditure really is. And we just wanted to
reiterate that, you know, we are a grassroots
efforts; we are nothing but volunteers; we have spent
t housands -- over 1,000 hours preparing for this. W
real |y have worked hard. Qur application was a cl ean
application. | |ooked at all the other applicants;
the application that we had, in ny opinion, is that
we were a very strong contender. W had nmet the
standard on 11 of the questions. There were very few

i ssues raised in our responses. W addressed al
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t hose and when we got our summary there was one
outstanding issue with the Gfted and Tal ented and we
addressed that successfully. W really believe that
we are speaking for the people in the Redfield Tri-
County area. W have al nost 800 signatures and you
bunp that up against a |ot of these other
applications, they had 500 signatures and they're in
urban areas with lots of population. W're talking
about a rural part of the area in Arkansas where

t hose three counties cone together, where it's people
living on acres and acres of land. There's not a
dense popul ation. W have al nost 800 signat ures.

The famlies there are crying out to have a school in
that area. The surrounding m ddle schools in our
area -- | believe this past year they were all in the
Needs | nprovenent category and we would |ike the
opportunity to provide a choice for the peopl e that
live in our area to have a school in that comunity

t hat wel cones everybody in that area and hopeful ly
can provide a great education. Strong comunity
support -- | nean, this is "for the comunity, by the
comunity."” GOkay? And we feel if we're given the
opportunity to represent and nore strongly address
those two areas of concern that you'll see that we

are well -prepared and commtted to finishing this
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process.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you very nuch. Anyone
who is here to speak in opposition of the
appl i cation?

(Brief moment of silence)

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you.

M5. KIGHT: Thank you.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Panel Menbers, questions
t hat you may have of the applicant?

DR WALTERS: | have a question for Ms. Perry.

CHAl RMVAN W TONSKI: M. Perry, if you could
pl ease cone up to the mc. Thank you

M5. PERRY: Yes, nma'am

DR. WALTERS: M. Perry, the issue with the
budget, I'mjust trying to get straightened out to
make sure |I'm | ooking at the correct budget. | don't
remenber every question that | asked but | renenber
that one of the questions that | asked the group was
t hat they had $5, 000 budgeted for two buses, for two
used buses. AmI looking at the correct budget?

MS. PERRY: The applicant is confirmng that you
are |l ooking at the correct budget.

MS. KIGHT: Yes. You and M. Hoy were | ooking
at the correct budget.

DR. WALTERS: Ckay. Al right. GCkay. | just
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needed to make sure | was |ooking at the right thing.
Thank you.

MS. KIGHT: May | add one thing to that? But
t he budget you were | ooking at --

CHAI RMVAN WTONSKI: |I'msorry. |If you could,
pl ease cone back to the mc and state your nanme. |'m
sorry. Thank you.

M5. KIGHT: M nane is Amanda Kight. And the
budget that you are | ooking at did not have the LO
fromM. Shollmer init. And if you d included
that, then we have a surplus and | think we have
enough funds to totally address your concern of the
mai nt enance -- and double it, if we need to -- and
still having revenue | eft over at the end. And one
thing | wanted to bring up too -- being in this spot
for me is not a confortable position. |It's hard to
get up and speak in front of people; it's hard to get
up and speak for a whole comunity of people. There
was a |l ot of pressure. And when you got off on the
wrong budget, that happened at kind of the very
begi nning of our hearing; it was 10 or 15 mnutes in,
maybe. And it really rocked ne and | did not -- |
shoul d have been able to address your concern on the
mai ntenance wwth M. Shollmer's letter, and | did

not do that; | failed to do that. But having those
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guestions at the beginning with the state director,
$90,000, .25 -- and I'msitting there kind of going,
"“I''mnot sure what nunbers you're looking at." | was
really rocked, you know, and it really did -- | did
not do a very good job. | actually did a poor job
addr essi ng your concerns over the textbooks and the
transportation. But | do believe that that is --
that if M. Shollmer's letter is considered, per the
LA amount that he had, that we have plenty of nobney
to address those concerns.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: M. Hernandez, who woul d you
like to bring to the mc?

MR. HERNANDEZ: Sane person

CHAl RMVAN W TONSKI :  Sorry.

MS. KIGHT: Do | have to state ny nane again?

MR. HERNANDEZ: | just have a question in
regards to M. Shollmer. M. Shollmer, the
$85,000, is that going to be an annual reoccurring
deal or --

M5. KIGHT: No. That letter, the LO, the way I
understand M. Shollmer's intent for this year was a
one-time donation. Now he did not include that he
woul d give us nore noney in our second year, but he
did not -- we did not go that far wwth himin asking

for that.
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MR. HERNANDEZ: Ckay. Thank you.
CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI : M. Hoy, you're recogni zed
for questions.
MR. HOY: Thank you. | think my question is for

Legal. Do we have soneone from Legal ?

CHAl RMVAN WTONSKI: Ms. Clay or M. Lasiter, if
you coul d please cone to the mc. Thank you.

MR HOY: darification on donations. |Is it
al l owabl e to include donations not yet received in a
budget in this scenario?

MR LASITER | nmean, it's certainly allowable
to consider that as a panel and, you know, you want
to weigh with themis it certainly noney that's going
to be there. There's nothing that says that you
can't consider that as a part of -- going toward
their budget to get started. You know, it's ny
under st andi ng that charter applicants routinely take
donations. | mean, they are a 501(c)(3) organization
so they routinely take donations in order to get
started. So it's sonething that you certainly can
consi der.

MR HOY: (Ckay.

MR. BOARDMAN: Wl I, and actually they don't --

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : M. Boar dman?

MR. BOARDMAN:  Yeah. Thank you. Actually, they
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don't have any noney anyway. | nean, basically none
of the charter schools -- their budgets are based on
anticipated enrollnents and antici pati on anyway, So

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Questions fromthe Panel ?
Ms. Coffman, you're recognized. Who would you like
to bring to the mc?

M5. COFFMAN:  Her. If you recall in our
previ ous conversations about curriculum | think
you' ve addressed that today. And so ny question is:
what has changed in your relationship with seeking
services from APSRC?

MS. KIGHT: Now that we know that it is a
requirenent to have a better defined curriculumwe
are nore than willing to spend that noney right now,
noney that we have in the bank for our organization,
and get that done without being a nenber of APSRC
Because we were trying to watch our -- be fiscally
responsi bl e and we thought we'd pay the $2,500 to
APSRC and get that service provided. But based on
the work and the hours and the tine involved in doing
this whole process | would gladly go -- | woul d pay
for it, you know, just 'cause | want us to have the
best possi bl e chance.

M5. COFFMAN.  Ckay.
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CHAI RMVAN WTONSKI: [I'"msorry, just a nonent.
Any additional questions that you have for her?

MS. COFFMAN. | was just wondering what your
alternative plan -- you said you woul d gl adly pay.
But how are you going to seek those services?

M5. KIGHT: A couple of different avenues. 1've
tal ked to a couple of different educators and they
have given ne a couple of nanes -- they had a couple
of nanes that they would be willing to provide ne
that are Curriculum Specialists | can contact. And
the other one is M. Shollmer, who has become
involved in this process. He has offered to work
with the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville and
get themto do our curriculumfor us. So |I have
those two options on the table. One of them | know,
is an attenpt, kind of Iike a letter of intent, but |
don't have that letter of intent so | can tell you
that nmy back-up plan -- because ideally | would |ove
the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville to do ny
curriculum That would be great. |If that falls
t hrough, then we would pay -- | would pay out of ny
own noney to get that done.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Any ot her
guestions fromthe panel nenbers? D scussion between

t he panel nenbers? Thank you so mnuch
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M5. KIGHT: One thing.
CHAl RMVAN W TONSKI :  Sure.
MS. KIGHT: M. Shollmer had intended to be
here today with us so he coul d speak but he has
recently purchased a building in Redfield and its
been vacant for a while. It's Iike 9,000 square
feet. And he just -- with the weather noving in he's

had sonme issues with sone possible freezing pipes
that he's trying to address. But he has conmtted to
-- if we get a rehearing, he will be present and so
we could include himand he would be a speaker on our
behal f .

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Any discussion
bet ween panel nenbers?

MR. BOARDMAN: Yeah. This is between us. |
don't know exactly if we decide to do this, the
timng, howthis relates to when the hearing would
be, when it would have to be, and when a final
deci sion would have to be made and all that. Do
y'all -- do we --

CHAI RVAN WTONSKI:  Ms. Clay or Ms. Perry, if
you woul d, pl ease cone address that question. M.
Boardman, his question is what the tineline would
look like if we did allow a resubm ssion of the

charter application to occur.
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MR. LASITER | know that you have a panel
neeting scheduled for, | guess, January but you could
also call your own neeting if you decided to re-hear
it. Interms of timng for the State Board, there
are two different authorizers in this process;
there's you and the State Board. So | would worry
about -- focus on your own process and what you want
to do and then, of course, that process -- whatever
finding that you nmake could be reviewed by the State
Board under the tinelines under the | aw.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you.

MR LASITER So really the timng is open.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Thank you. Any ot her
di scussi on anong panel nenbers or follow up
questi ons?

MR HERNANDEZ: [|'Il make a notion to deny the
request for a rehearing.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI : W have a notion to deny the
request for a resubm ssion of the charter
appl i cation.

MR. HOY: Second.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  Second from M. Hoy. Al
those in favor?

MR. HERNANDEZ: Aye.

MR HOY: Aye.
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DR WALTERS: Aye.

CHAI RMVAN W TONSKI :  Any opposed?

VMR, BOARDMAN:  No.

M5. COFFMAN:  No.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI : W have two opposed. M.
Lasiter, if we have opposition do we need to state
why we have opposition?

MR. LASITER No, ma'am You just want to nake
sure -- was it a three-to-two vote?

CHAI RMAN W TONSKI:  Yes, sir. A three-to-two
vote to deny the resubm ssion for the charter
application for the Tri-field [sic] County -- |I'm
sorry, | apologize -- for the Tri-County Charter
School for Redfield, Arkansas. M. Lasiter, did you
have anot her comment? |'msorry.

MR, LASITER  Well, just whenever you're --
bef ore we adj ourn.

CHAI RVMAN W TONSKI:  Yes, sir. | do want to
t hank you for com ng back out and | understand what
the concerns were in terns of the budget. But | do
want to note that | think we encouraged you after the
conclusion to go forth and begin | ooki ng and wor ki ng
t hrough the curricul um process, and | would stil
encourage you to do so for that resubm ssion to occur

at a later date. So, thank you so nuch for com ng.
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W appreciate it.
MR. BOARDMAN. Can | --
CHAI RVAN WTONSKI:  I'msorry. M. Boardman,
you' re recogni zed.
MR BOARDMAN: | would like to really encourage
that also. | don't think of all the people that have

been before us | have had a group that was any nore
sincere and any nore dedicated to nmake this work than
this group. And I know it would be difficult to go
back and try to do some of this again, but | think it
will be worth it because | really think that y'al
have the students' best interest in mnd and you're
trying to do sonething right.

DR. WALTERS: Can | say sonethi ng?

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI: Dr. Walters, you're
recogni zed.

DR WALTERS: And | know we don't have to tel
our reasons but | just -- because | know the group
feels like there was a technicality with the budget
and | just want to nmake sure that you understand that
ny reasons for voting to deny last tinme weren't
because of the budget questions that anyone raised
that was from an erroneous budget. You know, there
were several reasons and | think you' re working

t owar ds addressing sonme of those but, you know, |

Sharon Hill Court Reporting
(501) 847-0510






© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © 0O N o o0 M W N Rk O

- December 5, 2013

37

didn't feel like today that what was brought to us
was a reason to bring it back up this soon. But |
agree with what M. Boardnman said, as well. Thank
you.

CHAI RVAN W TONSKI :  And | woul d concur also with
t he budget issue. That mght -- | would -- | am
interested to see what the curricul um m ght | ook
i ke, sonmething that we -- tangible that we coul d
revi ew and sonet hing we could actually | ook forward
to. So in terns of the panel, M. Lasiter, we'll
turn it over to you

MR. LASITER Just a couple of things. | wanted
to make sure everyone knows that regardl ess of what
happened today in this neeting these applications
will still be on the agenda of the next State Board
of Education neeting. Now that neeting was schedul ed
to take place on Monday but we've recently |earned
this afternoon it's going to be postponed one week
due to the weather. So just for the applicants that
are here today, the State Board of Education stil
has an i ndependent right of review of each one of
t hese decisions and so they will be on the agenda for
the next State Board of Education neeting. And the
State Board of Education will decide at that point

whet her to exercise its owmn right of review If it
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does that, there will be a full hearing before the
State Board. So | just wanted to make sure that
everyone was aware of that process, nunber one. And
t hen, nunber two, that everyone was aware of the fact
that we are not going to have a State Board neeting
on Monday; it will happen the next follow ng Monday,
which | believe is the 16th at 9:00 in this room

CHAI RVAN WTONSKI:  So we will -- the State
Board of Education will be nmeeting on Mnday, the
16th, and will begin at 8:00 [sic] and that will be
an opportunity for the State Board to -- I'msorry --
9:00 aam That will be the next opportunity for the
State Board to review applications.

Thank you. This neeting is adjourned.

(The neeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m)
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              1                       P R O C E E D I N G S 


              2                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Good afternoon.  We're going 


              3            to go ahead and get started.  We've got the members 


              4            of the Charter Authorizing Panel here with us, and 


              5            thank you so much for those of you who were able to 


              6            come and join us and be in attendance today.  We 


              7            definitely appreciate your time and appreciate you 


              8            understanding the short notice in terms of the 


              9            timeline that we're under.  My name is Megan 


             10            Witonski; I'm the vice chair of the Charter 


             11            Authorizing Panel and I am going to be serving as 


             12            chair today for Dr. Tom Kimbrell who could not be 


             13            with us in attendance today.  The Charter Authorizing 


             14            Panel -- I just want to make sure that we are clear 


             15            on why we are meeting today so that we are all on the 


             16            same page.  We are meeting today to consider the 


             17            application requests of two open-enrollment charter 


             18            applicants and this is for the charter applicants to 


             19            actually resubmit their application for approval.  


             20            And there were two applications that would be 


             21            considered for this, which would be Capitol City 


             22            Lighthouse Charter School in North Little Rock, 


             23            Arkansas, and also for Redfield Tri-County Charter 


             24            School in Redfield, Arkansas. 


             25                 So just to clarify before we move forward, 
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              1            Arkansas law and the State Board of Education rules 


              2            state that an authorizer may allow an applicant for 


              3            an open-enrollment public charter school to resubmit 


              4            their application if the original application was 


              5            found to be deficient in some way.  So before we 


              6            begin with the agenda items I want to make sure that 


              7            we all understand why we are here today and explain 


              8            to those that are present that the decision before 


              9            the Panel today is to decide whether or not to allow 


             10            those applications to be reconsidered.  And if we 


             11            vote to allow resubmission we will need to schedule a 


             12            future hearing date for the charter applicant and 


             13            those applications would be heard at that time.  So 


             14            before we go further I just want to ask the Charter 


             15            Panel if you guys have any questions before we move 


             16            forward? 


             17                     (Brief moment of silence) 


             18                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  So with the consent of the 


             19            Panel, if everyone is okay and doesn't have any 


             20            questions, we are going to allow each party to speak 


             21            for five minutes on the limited question of whether 


             22            the Panel should allow the applicant to submit -- 


             23            resubmit their charter application.  And, again, I 


             24            want to make sure that we're very clear that the -- 


             25            we want to emphasize with the speakers that are here 
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              1            with us today, this is not a full hearing.  We are 


              2            not here to conduct full hearings for either 


              3            potential or proposed charter applications.  This is 


              4            simply to determine whether we will allow a 


              5            resubmission of the application to enact a full 


              6            hearing.  And I just want to clarify that, instead, 


              7            as a panel we want to hear why we should or should 


              8            not hear or allow a resubmission of your application 


              9            in a hearing process.  And we want to make sure also 


             10            that we hear from the party who initially requested 


             11            the application first and then we can follow that 


             12            with anyone who may have any opposition to the 


             13            resubmission being allowed.  So after we've had 


             14            presentation by both parties then I will open the 


             15            floor, Panel Members, to you so that if you have any 


             16            questions or you need further clarification we can do 


             17            that at that time.  So, Panel Members, is everyone 


             18            okay with that in terms of moving forward with this 


             19            process? 


             20             (All Panel Members answered affirmatively) 


             21                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  So we will be setting a 


             22            timer for you to be allowed to have time to be -- to 


             23            speak on the floor and I just want to clarify that's 


             24            five minutes for each group.  So if you are the 


             25            applicant who is asking for the resubmission of why 
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              1            we should hear the application again or have a full 


              2            hearing, you would have five minutes and, 


              3            collectively, those in opposition would also have 


              4            five minutes. 


              5  A-1:  CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO RESUBMIT AN OPEN-ENROLLMENT 


              6  PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION: CAPITOL CITY LIGHTHOUSE 


              7  CHARTER SCHOOL, NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 


              8                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  So before we begin I would 


              9            ask that we bring Ms. Mary Perry, if you would -- 


             10            we've got our agenda items that are included and I 


             11            believe first up on our agenda item is Item A-1, 


             12            which is the Consideration of Request to Resubmit an 


             13            Open-Enrollment Public School Charter Application; 


             14            that is for Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School, 


             15            in North Little Rock, Arkansas.  And so if you could 


             16            introduce this item to us and share some information, 


             17            we'd appreciate it. 


             18                 MS. PERRY:  Thank you.  On November 13th and 


             19            14th, 2013, the Charter Authorizing Panel conducted 


             20            hearings for open-enrollment charter applicants 


             21            wanting to open schools in 2014-2015.  


             22            Representatives of Capitol City Lighthouse Charter 


             23            School appeared before the panel on November 13th and 


             24            requested that Lighthouse Academies of Central 


             25            Arkansas, Incorporated, the sponsoring entity, be 
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              1            allowed to open a charter in North Little Rock to 


              2            serve students in grade K-12 with a maximum 


              3            enrollment of 750.  Representatives of the North 


              4            Little Rock School District and the Little Rock 


              5            School District spoke in opposition to the charter.  


              6            By a five-to-one vote the Panel denied the 


              7            application for Capitol City Lighthouse Charter 


              8            School.  And pursuant, as Dr. Witonski said, to 


              9            Section 6.06.2 of the Arkansas Department of 


             10            Education rules governing public charter schools, the 


             11            applicant is here to request the Panel consider 


             12            allowing the resubmission of the application.  You do 


             13            have folks who would need to be sworn in for both -- 


             14            there are representatives here from North Little 


             15            Rock, as well as the applicant.  And you have two 


             16            pieces of information in front of you.  One of them 


             17            indicates Lighthouse -- Lighthouse has that and I'm 


             18            sure they'll tell you what those are.  There is 


             19            another packet with paper that's stapled and North 


             20            Little Rock asks that you have that information.  


             21            Thank you. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.  Any 


             23            questions for Ms. Perry before we move forward?  


             24            Okay.  I'd like for anyone that is associated with 


             25            the Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School who plans 
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              1            to speak for the application to be resubmitted for a 


              2            hearing to please stand, and anyone who would like to 


              3            oppose the Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School in 


              4            North Little Rock, Arkansas, who plans to testify, if 


              5            you would please stand.  If you would, please raise 


              6            your right hand.  Do you swear to tell the truth, the 


              7            whole truth and nothing but the truth? 


              8               (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY) 


              9                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  You may be 


             10            seated.  We're going to begin with the open-


             11            enrollment applicant for the charter application that 


             12            is requesting resubmission, and that would be from 


             13            Capitol City Lighthouse Charter School. 


             14                 MR. RONAN:  Good afternoon. 


             15                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  If you would, 


             16            just state your name and I just want to remind you 


             17            that you and anyone that is here to testify on behalf 


             18            of have five minutes and I will begin that process 


             19            now. 


             20                 MR. RONAN:  My name is Michael Ronan; I'm the 


             21            founder and CEO of Lighthouse Academies.  I began my 


             22            career in education as a middle school teacher.  I 


             23            taught math, English and history.  Eventually, I 


             24            became a school superintendent and I was a school 


             25            superintendent for 16 years in the ninth lowest 
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              1            spending school district in Massachusetts.  I founded 


              2            Lighthouse Academies in 2003.  We came here to 


              3            Arkansas in 2009, opened our first charter school in 


              4            Jacksonville; expanded that school at the request of 


              5            the U.S. Air Force, to the Air Force Base, and opened 


              6            a school in Pine Bluff.  We submitted an application 


              7            with the applicant to open a school in North Little 


              8            Rock.  You heard the application and it was denied, 


              9            and the reasons for denial in the letter from the 


             10            Arkansas Department of Education were two things: one 


             11            was the curriculum, questions about the curriculum, 


             12            the education program; and the other was about the 


             13            test results.  I want to ask for reconsideration so 


             14            that these matters may be considered more fully and 


             15            that we can respond more fully in a new hearing to 


             16            those questions. 


             17                 Today, I'm going to highly just three things, 


             18            given the time allotted.  I think the first thing, 


             19            which is technical and wasn't mentioned in the denial 


             20            letter, is the question about whether or not the 


             21            North Little Rock School District had proper notice 


             22            for the application.  And as you can see from reading 


             23            our documents, we have spelled out all of the points 


             24            at which the North Little Rock School District had 


             25            proper notice.  In addition, the Department of 
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              1            Education found that the applicant met that standard.  


              2            In looking at the minutes from the North Little Rock 


              3            School Board meeting, in which the application was 


              4            discussed, the North Little Rock School District 


              5            denied the application based on perception of their 


              6            failure to have the application to review.  That's 


              7            simply not supported by the record.  But it's 


              8            important to know that the North Little Rock School 


              9            District did not deny the application based on its 


             10            merits.  And in the absence of a denial based on 


             11            merits we can only conclude that there were no 


             12            objections by the school board to the application 


             13            based on the merits of the application. 


             14                 In terms of the assessment results, the 


             15            PowerPoint details comparisons of the results of the 


             16            Lighthouse schools in Arkansas compared to North 


             17            Little Rock, Little Rock, and Pulaski County.  And 


             18            you can see on almost every measure, looking at 


             19            students who have only been in these schools for less 


             20            than five years, that these students do in fact out-


             21            perform in the aggregate the school districts from 


             22            which we would draw students to Capitol City.  And I 


             23            understand at the hearing that the North Little Rock 


             24            data was not available for the Panel to consider in 


             25            the manner in which we would present it to you if 
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              1            given the opportunity to have a re-hearing.   


              2                 The last point I want to make is around the 


              3            education program.  So I've been in education a long 


              4            time.  I taught mathematics.  I understand that there 


              5            are concerns about Saxon math.  We hear that from 


              6            time to time around the country.  But in fact, Saxon 


              7            math is a state-approved program.  It is approved to 


              8            use in Arkansas schools.  We have used it effectively 


              9            in Pine Bluff where we have one of the few achieving 


             10            schools in mathematics in the State of Arkansas.  


             11            There are places where it doesn't work.  In another 


             12            opportunity to present we would in fact detail how we 


             13            have in fact brought new mathematic curriculum to our 


             14            schools to in fact do those things that allow 


             15            students to be prepared to take the new assessments 


             16            that are aligned with the Common Core.  


             17                 So I know there were a lot of other things 


             18            discussed at that hearing based upon what I've heard 


             19            from our team and I'd be happy to respond to any and 


             20            all those issues that are raised.  But in the context 


             21            of should you grant us the opportunity to present 


             22            again, I would focus on three things: there was no 


             23            denial of our application on the basis of merit by 


             24            the North Little Rock School District; the test 


             25            results show that our schools are in fact, 
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              1            particularly the students who have been in our 


              2            schools for more than two years, are doing extremely 


              3            well; and, third, we have a curriculum that produces 


              4            those results and when we need to make adjustments we 


              5            make those adjustments.  Thank you very much. 


              6                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  We are going to 


              7            also hear from any party that wishes to oppose the 


              8            resubmission.  If you would, please come forward, 


              9            state your name.  And I just want to remind you as we 


             10            move forward that, again, it's five minutes 


             11            collectively -- and I don't know if there is anyone 


             12            else in opposition that you'll be sharing this time 


             13            with.  But otherwise, we are going to open the floor 


             14            to you.  And if you would, just state your name as 


             15            you begin.  Thank you. 


             16                 SUPT. RODGERS:  My name is Kelly Rodgers; I'm 


             17            Superintendent of Schools in North Little Rock and I 


             18            do appreciate you giving us notice and letting us 


             19            have time to speak to each of you.  Mine is very 


             20            short.  I did not receive notice -- and it may have 


             21            been because of the transition of the superintendent.  


             22            The superintendent was actually out of -- had left 


             23            and was on vacation as I took over, so that.  And the 


             24            fact that the board -- we had limited information at 


             25            the time that we made the decision to oppose that and 
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              1            that's the reason you didn't see more detail in the 


              2            board agenda.  So I'm going to keep mine short and 


              3            I'm going to turn it over to Ray Girdler, who has 


              4            information in the packet that you have today.  Thank 


              5            you. 


              6                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  If you would, 


              7            when you come to the mic please state your name.  


              8            Thank you. 


              9                 MR. GIRDLER:  My name is Ray Girdler; I am the 


             10            Coordinator of Data and Testing for the North Little 


             11            Rock School District.  Today, I brought to you a 


             12            packet of information addressing the results that we 


             13            reported directly in the letter.  I didn't formulate 


             14            a separate presentation.  This is just addressing the 


             15            data that was presented in the letter and I tried to 


             16            organize it in a way that it's very clear.  One of 


             17            the first things that you notice in the letter was 


             18            that Pine Bluff was left off the comparison when 


             19            comparing the other three Pulaski County schools to 


             20            their performance, so on the first page of your 


             21            handout.  I also want you to keep in mind they're 


             22            opening an elementary school and here on the front 


             23            page you have a comparison of North Little Rock 


             24            Elementary and Lighthouse elementaries at 


             25            Jacksonville and Pine Bluff.  If you look at the 
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              1            first two data tables, you see a combined score for 


              2            North Little Rock elementaries, all 12 campuses, for 


              3            both literacy and math.  They had made a notion that 


              4            we did not meet any of our AMO's.  That is true.  


              5            That I true, but for elementaries in K-5 every -- if 


              6            you look at our composite scores for all those, all 


              7            our elementary schools hit all eight of those targets 


              8            set by the district in K-5.  If you look down at the 


              9            bottom, you'll see a comparison of Lighthouse and 


             10            North Little Rock in literacy.  North Little Rock 


             11            scored 12.8% higher in comparing those grades for 


             12            all; 8.6% higher in TAG.  We did fall short in math 


             13            at 4.8% below and 10.1% with our TAG.  If you flip to 


             14            the second page of the packet, it addresses high 


             15            school, and specifically high school math.  If you 


             16            look down at the bottom, there you can see for us 


             17            it's algebra and geometry.  You see a comparison in 


             18            high school where we're 5.3% above in all, 11.1% 


             19            above in TAG.  They did make a comment that the 


             20            majority of their 8th graders take algebra at the 8th 


             21            grade level, and so a lot of that -- you see a scale 


             22            and growth chart of all Pulaski County schools and 


             23            I've noticed the Jacksonville Lighthouse and the 


             24            three Pulaski County schools in that demographic and 


             25            that representation there.  Pine Bluff was left off 
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              1            because algebra at the high school is not available 


              2            for them.  And there you can see where the Pulaski 


              3            County schools rank and where Jacksonville ranks as 


              4            far as the 8th grade scores are concerned.  So these 


              5            are the 8th graders taking algebra early.  If you 


              6            flip to the last page of the handout, this is a 


              7            compiled representation of the data they presented in 


              8            their letter but with the inclusion of Pine Bluff 


              9            schools with the Jacksonville schools together.  So 


             10            you see a combined look of their overall scores, if 


             11            you were to compile them -- and they are in fact one 


             12            entity, when you compare one elementary at each 


             13            campus and our campuses have 12.  That is a need that 


             14            needs to be looked at.  And in the second packet that 


             15            you see I made a comment at the last hearing about 


             16            the scale charts, how we compare grade by grade in 


             17            literacy and math, how they were almost identical.  I 


             18            just wanted you to see the visual representation of 


             19            that, what I was trying to explain that day, in what 


             20            you have before you.  I think one of the things when 


             21            opening a charter, to be innovative, is that there 


             22            needs to be addressed a need -- the community needs 


             23            to show a need for the charter to be in place, and I 


             24            think that's one thing you need to keep in mind when 


             25            considering this resubmission. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.   


              2                 MS. STEWART:  My name is Beth Stewart; I'm the 


              3            Assistant Superintendent of North Little Rock.  The 


              4            only thing that I want to mention today: based on 


              5            what Mr. Rodgers has told you, based on the 


              6            information that you have in front of you, we still 


              7            stand strongly by our -- my comment during the 


              8            hearing that they are still -- they have still shown 


              9            no educational need in North Little Rock.  Thank you. 


             10                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  That's going to 


             11            conclude the opportunity to hear from the charter 


             12            applicant that has requested resubmission and any 


             13            party who opposes the resubmission.  I want to move 


             14            to the Panel to ask if they have any questions for 


             15            either presenter that has presented today.  Mr. 


             16            Hernandez, you're recognized. 


             17                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Thank you.  I have a question 


             18            for the North Little Rock data person.   


             19                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  If you would please come 


             20            back to the mic and just state your name and 


             21            position, we'd appreciate it.  Thank you. 


             22                 MR. GIRDLER:  My name is Ray Girdler; I'm the 


             23            Coordinator of Testing and Data for the North Little 


             24            Rock School District. 


             25                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  I just wanted to clarify.  
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              1            On this list that we have, on the Lighthouse portion 


              2            of it, is the top section literacy and the bottom 


              3            section math?  Is that -- 


              4                 MR. GIRDLER:  That is correct.  That is correct. 


              5                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  That was my only 


              6            question. 


              7                 MR. GIRDLER:  Thank you. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Any other questions from 


              9            panel members?  Ms. Coffman, you're recognized. 


             10                 MS. COFFMAN:  I'd like to ask a question of the 


             11            first gentleman for Lighthouse Charter School. 


             12                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  If you could please come 


             13            back up to the microphone -- 


             14                 MR. RONAN:  I'm Mike Ronan; I'm the founder of 


             15            Lighthouse Academies. 


             16                 MS. COFFMAN:  Hi, Mike.  My question was a 


             17            question -- you ended your conversation by saying if 


             18            you needed to readdress your curriculum you would.  


             19            And can you tell me, do you have a process -- what is 


             20            the process in place for readdressing your 


             21            curriculum? 


             22                 MR. RONAN:  So we have a research development 


             23            strategy team at Lighthouse Academies, national, that 


             24            reviews all of our data in-depth for every student, 


             25            every school, every year, against not only the Common 
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              1            Core standards now but also the state standards, 


              2            assessment results.  And then we look across our 


              3            schools, looking at subgroups, targeted groups, and 


              4            use that data to formulate whether or not the program 


              5            -- the programming resources that are being used are 


              6            being effective or whether they need to be changed.  


              7            So that not only includes textbooks and materials 


              8            like that, but it also includes responsive 


              9            intervention, pullouts, and things of that nature, 


             10            professional development, which we believe is a very 


             11            strong component of our model.  So look at the data 


             12            and then that data is discussed with the school, the 


             13            school leader and the leadership team, and then that 


             14            team is required to develop a culture achievement 


             15            plan, which is a -- you might call it a school 


             16            improvement plan, but it's a plan with specific 


             17            targets for academic growth not only for the whole 


             18            school but also for any subgroups.  The leadership 


             19            team at that school is then evaluated on how well 


             20            they do relative to that plan.  So it's a process 


             21            that includes teacher evaluations and things of that 


             22            nature. 


             23                 MS. COFFMAN:  And as a follow-up question, is 


             24            that done annually? 


             25                 MR. RONAN:  Yeah.  It's done annually.  In fact, 
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              1            we do interim assessments five times a year, so it's 


              2            chunked.  So, you know, you have the mega analysis at 


              3            the end of the year but every six weeks we have 


              4            interim assessments in which there's the school day 


              5            to day, which that process is following then the 


              6            school. 


              7                 MS. COFFMAN:  Thank you.   


              8                 MR. RONAN:  You're welcome. 


              9                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Any other questions from the 


             10            Panel?  Okay.  So our next opportunity would be 


             11            either for discussion between the panel members -- 


             12            any discussion or a motion?   


             13                 DR. WALTERS:  Can I ask a question? 


             14                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Sure. 


             15                 DR. WALTERS:  Okay.  So what will you be looking 


             16            -- we're about to vote on either a motion to give 


             17            them an opportunity to present again or to deny that 


             18            opportunity.  Is that correct? 


             19                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Correct.  This is to 


             20            consider the request for them to -- for the applicant 


             21            to resubmit their applications for approval.  And so 


             22            what we are decided today is whether the Panel will 


             23            allow that resubmission to occur so that a formal 


             24            hearing can be held or not. 


             25                 DR. WALTERS:  I have a motion. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Dr. Walters. 


              2                 DR. WALTERS:  I make a motion that we deny the 


              3            request to present the application on another day. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  We have a motion to consider 


              5            -- to deny the consideration of Capitol City 


              6            Lighthouse Charter School in North Little Rock, 


              7            Arkansas. 


              8                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'll second. 


              9                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  We have a second.  Panel 


             10            Members, all in favor? 


             11                     (UNANIMOUS CHORUS OF AYES) 


             12                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  And so since this was a 


             13            denial we're going to have to go around and state the 


             14            reasons why we are denying the opportunity for the 


             15            charter to resubmit. 


             16                 MR. BOARDMAN:  Are you sure about that?  'Cause 


             17            I thought that was just the first time. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Ms. Clay, will you clarify 


             19            for us please? 


             20                 MS. CLAY:  You don't have to give your reason on 


             21            this one. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Okay.  So we had no nays and 


             23            I believe that was unanimous.  Do we have any nays? 


             24                     (Brief moment of silence) 


             25                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  Thank you so 
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              1            much, sir.  We appreciate your time. 


              2  A-2:  CONSIDERATION OF REQUEST TO RESUBMIT AN OPEN-ENROLLMENT 


              3  PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL APPLICATION: REDFIELD TRI-COUNTY CHARTER 


              4  SCHOOL, REDFIELD, ARKANSAS 


              5                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  We're going to move on to 


              6            our second agenda item.  Ms. Perry, I'm going to turn 


              7            this over to you, this second -- this brings us to 


              8            our second agenda item which is A-2, which is the 


              9            Consideration of Request to Resubmit an Open-


             10            Enrollment Public Charter School Application for the 


             11            Redfield Tri-County Charter School, Redfield, 


             12            Arkansas.  Ms. Perry. 


             13                 MS. PERRY:  As I stated in the last item, on 


             14            November 13th and 14th the Charter Authorizing Panel 


             15            conducted hearings for open-enrollment charter 


             16            applicants wanting to open next school year.  The 


             17            representatives of the Redfield Tri-County School 


             18            District appeared before the Panel on November 14th 


             19            and requested that Redfield Tri-County Charter 


             20            School, the sponsoring entity, be allowed to open a 


             21            charter in Redfield to serve students in grade 5-12 


             22            with a maximum enrollment of 375.  By a unanimous 


             23            vote the Panel denied the application for Redfield 


             24            Tri-County Charter School.  Pursuant to the rules of 


             25            Arkansas Department of Education rules governing 




                                                  �


                                                                               22




              1            public charter schools, Section 6.06.2, the applicant 


              2            requests that the Panel consider as a resubmission, 


              3            allowing them to resubmit the application. 


              4                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you, Ms. Perry.  Any 


              5            questions for Ms. Perry before we move forward?  


              6            Okay.  If you are with the Redfield Tri-County 


              7            Charter School applicant or if you are opposing the 


              8            submission of the application, if you would please 


              9            stand if you plan to testify.  If you would please 


             10            raise your right hand -- do you swear to tell the 


             11            truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth? 


             12               (ALL WITNESSES ANSWERED AFFIRMATIVELY) 


             13                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  Thank you.  


             14            We're going to hear from -- initially from the 


             15            charter applicant who has requested resubmission.  


             16            And if you would, please be mindful that there are 


             17            five minutes allotted for your time to speak and that 


             18            would include anyone you would like to speak on 


             19            behalf of the resubmission to be considered.  So if 


             20            you would, please state your name and your five 


             21            minutes will begin. 


             22                 MS. KIGHT:  My name is Amanda Kight and I'll be 


             23            speaking today on behalf of Redfield Tri-County 


             24            Charter School.  Is that too high? 


             25                 (COURT REPORTER'S NOTE:  Ms. Kight was 
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              1            indicating the microphone). 


              2                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Yes.  I'm sorry. 


              3                 MS. KIGHT:  That's okay.  I'm vertically 


              4            challenged.  We believe that we should be allowed to 


              5            have another hearing because during our hearing 


              6            accidentally some of the members of the Panel were 


              7            actually looking at someone else's budget, based on 


              8            comments and questions that they asked to us during 


              9            our hearing.  I had voiced a couple of times during 


             10            the hearing I was confused; I didn't understand where 


             11            you were getting the questions and the hearing kept 


             12            proceeding.  And it didn't hit me until I was driving 


             13            home what had happened because I knew that wasn't my 


             14            budget; I knew I didn't have salaries like that.  So 


             15            I had called and communicated with Mary Perry the 


             16            next day and kind of told her what I thought had 


             17            happened but I was going to wait for the video to 


             18            come up on the website just to make sure.  And so 


             19            once the video came up on the ADE website I went back 


             20            and I found in the hearing where we had kind of 


             21            gotten off-track a little bit.  I believe it was the 


             22            Quest budget that had been presented right before me 


             23            that a couple of panel members had and I believe that 


             24            some of the comments and questions that they made may 


             25            have adversely impacted some other members' opinion 
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              1            because they were asking questions on the budget that 


              2            wasn't really mine.  I had also presented a letter of 


              3            intent from Mr. Ken Shollmier that was for an $85,000 


              4            donation; that was not taken into consideration, I 


              5            don't believe, because there was a lot of concerns 


              6            over our -- how much money we had allowed for 


              7            transportation and we only had 2% left of our budget.  


              8            We can go back and watch the video to kind of hear 


              9            those questions.  But in reality, had Mr. Shollmier's 


             10            $85,000 been considered we had a very nice healthy 9% 


             11            left over, which is actually more left over in that 


             12            revenue verses expenditures than the two applications 


             13            that were approved had in their budget. 


             14                 There were also questions about our curriculum.  


             15            The reason we feel that we need another hearing on 


             16            the curriculum part is, in July, we came to the 


             17            workshop that Mary Perry presented for us and we 


             18            learned a lot and took lots of notes, did lots of 


             19            things.  And one of the things that we immediately 


             20            tried to do was to join the APSRC so we could have 


             21            access to a Curriculum Specialist, because that was 


             22            one of the services that they provide when you become 


             23            a member.  Well, we did put in our application but we 


             24            were denied because we did not have approval yet for 


             25            a charter school.  So we kind of thought, Okay, maybe 
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              1            we shouldn't have to have it well-defined at this 


              2            point.  And then we looked at the question in the 


              3            application and the verbiage in that question on the 


              4            curriculum actually says, "What process will be used 


              5            to define an aligned curriculum?"  So I admit we were 


              6            weak the first presentation on our curriculum 


              7            definition, but that was kind of based on the 


              8            experience we had trying to get into the APSRC and in 


              9            the wording of the question on the application.  We 


             10            will gladly be able to go get the services of the 


             11            Curriculum Specialist and we will have a much better 


             12            defined curriculum if we are allowed to come back 


             13            before you.  We will submit a revised budget that 


             14            includes Mr. Shollmier's $85,000 donation so there 


             15            will be less confusion over how much our net revenue-


             16            to-expenditure really is.  And we just wanted to 


             17            reiterate that, you know, we are a grassroots 


             18            efforts; we are nothing but volunteers; we have spent 


             19            thousands -- over 1,000 hours preparing for this.  We 


             20            really have worked hard.  Our application was a clean 


             21            application.  I looked at all the other applicants; 


             22            the application that we had, in my opinion, is that 


             23            we were a very strong contender.  We had met the 


             24            standard on 11 of the questions.  There were very few 


             25            issues raised in our responses.  We addressed all 
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              1            those and when we got our summary there was one 


              2            outstanding issue with the Gifted and Talented and we 


              3            addressed that successfully.  We really believe that 


              4            we are speaking for the people in the Redfield Tri-


              5            County area.  We have almost 800 signatures and you 


              6            bump that up against a lot of these other 


              7            applications, they had 500 signatures and they're in 


              8            urban areas with lots of population.  We're talking 


              9            about a rural part of the area in Arkansas where 


             10            those three counties come together, where it's people 


             11            living on acres and acres of land.  There's not a 


             12            dense population.  We have almost 800 signatures.  


             13            The families there are crying out to have a school in 


             14            that area.  The surrounding middle schools in our 


             15            area -- I believe this past year they were all in the 


             16            Needs Improvement category and we would like the 


             17            opportunity to provide a choice for the people that 


             18            live in our area to have a school in that community 


             19            that welcomes everybody in that area and hopefully 


             20            can provide a great education.  Strong community 


             21            support -- I mean, this is "for the community, by the 


             22            community."  Okay?  And we feel if we're given the 


             23            opportunity to represent and more strongly address 


             24            those two areas of concern that you'll see that we 


             25            are well-prepared and committed to finishing this 
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              1            process. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you very much.  Anyone 


              3            who is here to speak in opposition of the 


              4            application?   


              5                     (Brief moment of silence) 


              6                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you. 


              7                 MS. KIGHT:  Thank you. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Panel Members, questions 


              9            that you may have of the applicant? 


             10                 DR. WALTERS:  I have a question for Ms. Perry. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Ms. Perry, if you could 


             12            please come up to the mic.  Thank you. 


             13                 MS. PERRY:  Yes, ma'am. 


             14                 DR. WALTERS:  Ms. Perry, the issue with the 


             15            budget, I'm just trying to get straightened out to 


             16            make sure I'm looking at the correct budget.  I don't 


             17            remember every question that I asked but I remember 


             18            that one of the questions that I asked the group was 


             19            that they had $5,000 budgeted for two buses, for two 


             20            used buses.  Am I looking at the correct budget? 


             21                 MS. PERRY:  The applicant is confirming that you 


             22            are looking at the correct budget. 


             23                 MS. KIGHT:  Yes.  You and Mr. Hoy were looking 


             24            at the correct budget. 


             25                 DR. WALTERS:  Okay.  All right.  Okay.  I just 
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              1            needed to make sure I was looking at the right thing.  


              2            Thank you. 


              3                 MS. KIGHT:  May I add one thing to that?  But 


              4            the budget you were looking at -- 


              5                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  I'm sorry.  If you could, 


              6            please come back to the mic and state your name.  I'm 


              7            sorry.  Thank you. 


              8                 MS. KIGHT:  My name is Amanda Kight.  And the 


              9            budget that you are looking at did not have the LOI 


             10            from Mr. Shollmier in it.  And if you'd included 


             11            that, then we have a surplus and I think we have 


             12            enough funds to totally address your concern of the 


             13            maintenance -- and double it, if we need to -- and 


             14            still having revenue left over at the end.  And one 


             15            thing I wanted to bring up too -- being in this spot 


             16            for me is not a comfortable position.  It's hard to 


             17            get up and speak in front of people; it's hard to get 


             18            up and speak for a whole community of people.  There 


             19            was a lot of pressure.  And when you got off on the 


             20            wrong budget, that happened at kind of the very 


             21            beginning of our hearing; it was 10 or 15 minutes in, 


             22            maybe.  And it really rocked me and I did not -- I 


             23            should have been able to address your concern on the 


             24            maintenance with Mr. Shollmier's letter, and I did 


             25            not do that; I failed to do that.  But having those 
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              1            questions at the beginning with the state director, 


              2            $90,000, .25 -- and I'm sitting there kind of going, 


              3            "I'm not sure what numbers you're looking at."  I was 


              4            really rocked, you know, and it really did -- I did 


              5            not do a very good job.  I actually did a poor job 


              6            addressing your concerns over the textbooks and the 


              7            transportation.  But I do believe that that is -- 


              8            that if Mr. Shollmier's letter is considered, per the 


              9            LOI amount that he had, that we have plenty of money 


             10            to address those concerns. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Mr. Hernandez, who would you 


             12            like to bring to the mic? 


             13                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Same person. 


             14                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Sorry. 


             15                 MS. KIGHT:  Do I have to state my name again? 


             16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I just have a question in 


             17            regards to Mr. Shollmier.  Mr. Shollmier, the 


             18            $85,000, is that going to be an annual reoccurring 


             19            deal or -- 


             20                 MS. KIGHT:  No.  That letter, the LOI, the way I 


             21            understand Mr. Shollmier's intent for this year was a 


             22            one-time donation.  Now he did not include that he 


             23            would give us more money in our second year, but he 


             24            did not -- we did not go that far with him in asking 


             25            for that. 
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              1                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Okay.  Thank you. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Mr. Hoy, you're recognized 


              3            for questions. 


              4                 MR. HOY:  Thank you.  I think my question is for 


              5            Legal.  Do we have someone from Legal? 


              6                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Ms. Clay or Mr. Lasiter, if 


              7            you could please come to the mic.  Thank you. 


              8                 MR. HOY:  Clarification on donations.  Is it 


              9            allowable to include donations not yet received in a 


             10            budget in this scenario? 


             11                 MR. LASITER:  I mean, it's certainly allowable 


             12            to consider that as a panel and, you know, you want 


             13            to weigh with them is it certainly money that's going 


             14            to be there.  There's nothing that says that you 


             15            can't consider that as a part of -- going toward 


             16            their budget to get started.  You know, it's my 


             17            understanding that charter applicants routinely take 


             18            donations.  I mean, they are a 501(c)(3) organization 


             19            so they routinely take donations in order to get 


             20            started.  So it's something that you certainly can 


             21            consider. 


             22                 MR. HOY:  Okay. 


             23                 MR. BOARDMAN:  Well, and actually they don't -- 


             24                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Mr. Boardman? 


             25                 MR. BOARDMAN:  Yeah.  Thank you.  Actually, they 
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              1            don't have any money anyway.  I mean, basically none 


              2            of the charter schools -- their budgets are based on 


              3            anticipated enrollments and anticipation anyway, so  


              4            -- 


              5                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Questions from the Panel?  


              6            Ms. Coffman, you're recognized.  Who would you like 


              7            to bring to the mic? 


              8                 MS. COFFMAN:  Her.  If you recall in our 


              9            previous conversations about curriculum, I think 


             10            you've addressed that today.  And so my question is: 


             11            what has changed in your relationship with seeking 


             12            services from APSRC? 


             13                 MS. KIGHT:  Now that we know that it is a 


             14            requirement to have a better defined curriculum we 


             15            are more than willing to spend that money right now, 


             16            money that we have in the bank for our organization, 


             17            and get that done without being a member of APSRC.  


             18            Because we were trying to watch our -- be fiscally 


             19            responsible and we thought we'd pay the $2,500 to 


             20            APSRC and get that service provided.  But based on 


             21            the work and the hours and the time involved in doing 


             22            this whole process I would gladly go -- I would pay 


             23            for it, you know, just 'cause I want us to have the 


             24            best possible chance. 


             25                 MS. COFFMAN:  Okay. 
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              1                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  I'm sorry, just a moment.  


              2            Any additional questions that you have for her? 


              3                 MS. COFFMAN:  I was just wondering what your 


              4            alternative plan -- you said you would gladly pay.  


              5            But how are you going to seek those services? 


              6                 MS. KIGHT:  A couple of different avenues.  I've 


              7            talked to a couple of different educators and they 


              8            have given me a couple of names -- they had a couple 


              9            of names that they would be willing to provide me 


             10            that are Curriculum Specialists I can contact.  And 


             11            the other one is Mr. Shollmier, who has become 


             12            involved in this process.  He has offered to work 


             13            with the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville and 


             14            get them to do our curriculum for us.  So I have 


             15            those two options on the table.  One of them, I know, 


             16            is an attempt, kind of like a letter of intent, but I 


             17            don't have that letter of intent so I can tell you 


             18            that my back-up plan -- because ideally I would love 


             19            the University of Arkansas at Fayetteville to do my 


             20            curriculum.  That would be great.  If that falls 


             21            through, then we would pay -- I would pay out of my 


             22            own money to get that done. 


             23                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  Any other 


             24            questions from the panel members?  Discussion between 


             25            the panel members?  Thank you so much. 
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              1                 MS. KIGHT:  One thing. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Sure. 


              3                 MS. KIGHT:  Mr. Shollmier had intended to be 


              4            here today with us so he could speak but he has 


              5            recently purchased a building in Redfield and its 


              6            been vacant for a while.  It's like 9,000 square 


              7            feet.  And he just -- with the weather moving in he's 


              8            had some issues with some possible freezing pipes 


              9            that he's trying to address.  But he has committed to 


             10            -- if we get a rehearing, he will be present and so 


             11            we could include him and he would be a speaker on our 


             12            behalf. 


             13                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  Any discussion 


             14            between panel members? 


             15                 MR. BOARDMAN:  Yeah.  This is between us.  I 


             16            don't know exactly if we decide to do this, the 


             17            timing, how this relates to when the hearing would 


             18            be, when it would have to be, and when a final 


             19            decision would have to be made and all that.  Do 


             20            y'all -- do we -- 


             21                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Ms. Clay or Ms. Perry, if 


             22            you would, please come address that question.  Mr. 


             23            Boardman, his question is what the timeline would 


             24            look like if we did allow a resubmission of the 


             25            charter application to occur. 
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              1                 MR. LASITER:  I know that you have a panel 


              2            meeting scheduled for, I guess, January but you could 


              3            also call your own meeting if you decided to re-hear 


              4            it.  In terms of timing for the State Board, there 


              5            are two different authorizers in this process; 


              6            there's you and the State Board.  So I would worry 


              7            about -- focus on your own process and what you want 


              8            to do and then, of course, that process -- whatever 


              9            finding that you make could be reviewed by the State 


             10            Board under the timelines under the law. 


             11                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you. 


             12                 MR. LASITER:  So really the timing is open. 


             13                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Thank you.  Any other 


             14            discussion among panel members or follow-up 


             15            questions?   


             16                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  I'll make a motion to deny the 


             17            request for a rehearing. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  We have a motion to deny the 


             19            request for a resubmission of the charter 


             20            application. 


             21                 MR. HOY:  Second. 


             22                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Second from Mr. Hoy.  All 


             23            those in favor? 


             24                 MR. HERNANDEZ:  Aye. 


             25                 MR. HOY:  Aye. 
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              1                 DR. WALTERS:  Aye. 


              2                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Any opposed? 


              3                 MR. BOARDMAN:  No. 


              4                 MS. COFFMAN:  No. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  We have two opposed.  Mr. 


              6            Lasiter, if we have opposition do we need to state 


              7            why we have opposition? 


              8                 MR. LASITER:  No, ma'am.  You just want to make 


              9            sure -- was it a three-to-two vote? 


             10                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Yes, sir.  A three-to-two 


             11            vote to deny the resubmission for the charter 


             12            application for the Tri-field [sic] County -- I'm 


             13            sorry, I apologize -- for the Tri-County Charter 


             14            School for Redfield, Arkansas.  Mr. Lasiter, did you 


             15            have another comment?  I'm sorry. 


             16                 MR. LASITER:  Well, just whenever you're -- 


             17            before we adjourn. 


             18                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Yes, sir.  I do want to 


             19            thank you for coming back out and I understand what 


             20            the concerns were in terms of the budget.  But I do 


             21            want to note that I think we encouraged you after the 


             22            conclusion to go forth and begin looking and working 


             23            through the curriculum process, and I would still 


             24            encourage you to do so for that resubmission to occur 


             25            at a later date.  So, thank you so much for coming.  
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              1            We appreciate it.  


              2                 MR. BOARDMAN:  Can I -- 


              3                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  I'm sorry.  Mr. Boardman, 


              4            you're recognized. 


              5                 MR. BOARDMAN:  I would like to really encourage 


              6            that also.  I don't think of all the people that have 


              7            been before us I have had a group that was any more 


              8            sincere and any more dedicated to make this work than 


              9            this group.  And I know it would be difficult to go 


             10            back and try to do some of this again, but I think it 


             11            will be worth it because I really think that y'all 


             12            have the students' best interest in mind and you're 


             13            trying to do something right. 


             14                 DR. WALTERS:  Can I say something? 


             15                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  Dr. Walters, you're 


             16            recognized. 


             17                 DR. WALTERS:  And I know we don't have to tell 


             18            our reasons but I just -- because I know the group 


             19            feels like there was a technicality with the budget 


             20            and I just want to make sure that you understand that 


             21            my reasons for voting to deny last time weren't 


             22            because of the budget questions that anyone raised 


             23            that was from an erroneous budget.  You know, there 


             24            were several reasons and I think you're working 


             25            towards addressing some of those but, you know, I 
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              1            didn't feel like today that what was brought to us 


              2            was a reason to bring it back up this soon.  But I 


              3            agree with what Mr. Boardman said, as well.  Thank 


              4            you. 


              5                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  And I would concur also with 


              6            the budget issue.  That might -- I would -- I am 


              7            interested to see what the curriculum might look 


              8            like, something that we -- tangible that we could 


              9            review and something we could actually look forward 


             10            to.  So in terms of the panel, Mr. Lasiter, we'll 


             11            turn it over to you. 


             12                 MR. LASITER:  Just a couple of things.  I wanted 


             13            to make sure everyone knows that regardless of what 


             14            happened today in this meeting these applications 


             15            will still be on the agenda of the next State Board 


             16            of Education meeting.  Now that meeting was scheduled 


             17            to take place on Monday but we've recently learned 


             18            this afternoon it's going to be postponed one week 


             19            due to the weather.  So just for the applicants that 


             20            are here today, the State Board of Education still 


             21            has an independent right of review of each one of 


             22            these decisions and so they will be on the agenda for 


             23            the next State Board of Education meeting.  And the 


             24            State Board of Education will decide at that point 


             25            whether to exercise its own right of review.  If it 
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              1            does that, there will be a full hearing before the 


              2            State Board.  So I just wanted to make sure that 


              3            everyone was aware of that process, number one.  And 


              4            then, number two, that everyone was aware of the fact 


              5            that we are not going to have a State Board meeting 


              6            on Monday; it will happen the next following Monday, 


              7            which I believe is the 16th at 9:00 in this room. 


              8                 CHAIRMAN WITONSKI:  So we will -- the State 


              9            Board of Education will be meeting on Monday, the 


             10            16th, and will begin at 8:00 [sic] and that will be 


             11            an opportunity for the State Board to -- I'm sorry -- 


             12            9:00 a.m.  That will be the next opportunity for the 


             13            State Board to review applications.   


             14                 Thank you.  This meeting is adjourned. 


             15   


             16              (The meeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m.) 
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